
 

 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Brandon Self, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
John Jones, Ward III 

Charlie Brashers, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Matt Russell, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

AMENDED AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Zoom Online Meeting  

May 19, 2020 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

Due to directives to limit gatherings to less than 20 people, the City Council will be holding the 
meeting via an online platform.  Citizens will be able to participate in the meeting via the zoom 
app/website or YouTube.   

Citizens that wish to view the meeting without speaking for or against an item may watch the live 
stream of the meeting on the City of Republic YouTube page: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmvA973eokxbVlHVODl-1_A 

Citizens that wish to speak for or against an item on the agenda may contact the City Clerk’s Office 
before Tuesday May 19th at 5:00 p.m. to have the opportunity to speak or have their input shared 
during the meeting.  Citizens may send their feedback via email to LBurbridge@republicmo.com or 
call 732-3140.  We ask that citizens not join Zoom by video unless requested by staff so there is room 
on the screen for all Council Members to be seen.  The link to participate in the meeting is listed 
below.   

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87383952711 

Meeting ID: 873 8395 2711 

One tap mobile 

13017158592, Meeting ID 87383952711 

13126266799, Meeting ID 87383952711 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve City Council Special Session Minutes from April 30, 2020. 

2. Approve City Council Minutes from May 5, 2020. 

3. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

4. Approve Vendor List. 

5. Approve Utility Billing Adjustments 

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmvA973eokxbVlHVODl-1_A
mailto:LBurbridge@republicmo.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87383952711


 

 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
June 2, 2020 City Council Meeting 
June 4, 2020 Board of Adjustment Meeting 
June 8, 2020 Planning & Zoning Meeting 
June 16, 2020 City Council Meeting 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

6. 20-20 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the 
Execution of a STP-Urban Program Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission for the Design and Right of Way Acquisition for the Extension of the Shuyler Creek 
Trail. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

7. 20-21 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 

the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 23.5 Acres, 

Located at the 7500 Block of West Farm Road 174, from Agricultural (Ag) to High Density Single-

Family Residential (R1-H). 

8. 20-22 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Vacating a Water Line 
Easement on Lot 1 of the Old Stone PDD. 

9. 20-23 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Enter into an Infrastructure Development Agreement with Turner Residential 
Holding, LLC for Infrastructure for Phase 1 of the A’vila Residential Subdivision. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

10. 20-R-10 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the 

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of a Nonprofit Corporation for Ozarks Transportation 

Organization. 

11. 20-R-11 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving a 

Preliminary Plat for Olde Savannah, a Residential Subdivision Consisting of Approximately 24.48 

Acres Located at the 6300 Block of South Farm Road 89. 

12. 20-R-12 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Water 

and Wastewater Master Plans. 

13. 20-R-13 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Awarding the Bid for 
the Phone System. 

14. 20-R-14 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the 

Establishment of a Bank Account and Authorized Signers for the Municipal Court. 

15. 20-R-15 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Providing for Phase 

Two of the Covid-19 Recovery Plan for the City of Republic. 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take 
place after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise 
stated on the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

 

Page 2



 

 

Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 

address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 732-3140 at least three days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing. 
  

Page 3



 

1 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  S p e c i a l  S e s s i o n ,  A p r i l  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Brandon Self, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
John Jones, Ward III 

Charlie Brashers, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Matt Russell, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Special Session 

Online Zoom Meeting  

April 30, 2020 at 6:00 PM 
 

Call Meeting to Order 

Mayor Ussery called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  Council Members in attendance via Zoom 
include Garry Wilson, Jim Deichman, Charlie Brashers, Matt Russell, Eric Franklin, John Jones, and 
Brandon Self.  Council Member Gerry Pool attended via telephone.  Others in attendance include City 
Administrator David Cameron, Assistant City Administrator Jared Keeling, IT Director Josh Jones, 
Assistant Public Works Director Garrett Brickner, Police Chief Brian Sells, Public Works Director Andrew 
Nelson, Assistant City Administrator Lisa Addington, City Attorney Scott Ison, Fire Chief Duane Compton, 
and City Clerk Laura Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Jeff Ussery. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Ussery opened citizen participation at 6:03 p.m.  No one came forward so Mayor Ussery closed 
citizen participation at 6:03 p.m. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

20-R-09 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Providing for the Initial 
Covid-19 Recovery Plan for the City of Republic.  David Cameron gave an overview of Resolution 20-R-
09.  A release has been prepared that would direct questions to the Community Development office 
since they have the building plans and could provide guidance to businesses if needed.  Questions can 
be taken on a case by case basis as needed.  Motion was made by Council Member Deichman and 
seconded by Council Member Franklin to approve Resolution 20-R-09.  The vote was 8 Aye-Self, Franklin, 
Pool, Wilson, Deichman, Russell, Brashers, and Jones.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Ussery adjourned the meeting at 6:27 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk    Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Page 4Item # 1.



 

1 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  0 5 ,  2 0 2 0  

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Brandon Self, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
John Jones, Ward III 

Charlie Brashers, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Matt Russell, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Online Zoom Meeting  

May 05, 2020 at 6:30 PM 
 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Jeff Ussery at 6:30 p.m. via Zoom Online Meetings. Council Members in 
attendance via Zoom were: Eric Franklin, Jim Deichman, Garry Wilson, Brandon Self, John Jones, Matt 
Russell, and Charlie Brashers. Council Member Gerry Pool was present by telephone. Others in 
attendance were: City Administrator David Cameron, Assistant City Administrator Jared Keeling, 
Assistant City Administrator Lisa Addington, Police Chief Brian Sells, City Attorney Scott Ison, Assistant 
Public Works Director Garrett Brickner, Public Information Officer Mike Landis, Principal Planner Karen 
Haynes, Public Works Director Andrew Nelson, IT Director Josh Jones, and City Clerk Laura Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Jeff Ussery. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Ussery opened Citizen Participation at 6:30 p.m.  No one came forward so Mayor Ussery closed 
Citizen Participation at 6:31 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Franklin.  The vote was 
8 Aye-Self, Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Deichman, Russell, Brashers, and Jones.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

Approve City Council Minutes from April 21, 2020. 

As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office.  

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 

Board of Adjustment     May 7, 2020 

Planning and Zoning   May 11, 2020 

City Council Meeting May 19, 2020 

City Council Meeting  June 2, 2020 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

20-18 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 

the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 6.4 Acres, 

Located at 830 West O’Neal Road, from Agricultural (AG) to Medium Density Single-Family 

Residential (R1-M). 

Page 5Item # 2.



 

 2 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  0 5 ,  2 0 2 0  

 Motion was made by Council Member Russell and seconded by Council Member Deichman to 
have the second reading of Bill 20-18 by title only.  The vote was 8 Aye-Deichman, Brashers, 
Wilson, Russell, Franklin, Self, and Pool.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was available to 
answer any questions regarding this bill.  Council Member Wilson motioned for the passage of 
Bill 20-18.  Council Member Franklin seconded.  A roll call vote was taken.  The vote was 7 Aye-
Brashers, Russell, Self, Jones, Wilson, Deichman, and Franklin.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

20-19 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri Approving Amending 

the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 24.48 Acres, 

Located at the 6300 Block of South Farm Road 89, from Agricultural (AG) to High Density 

Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

 Motion was made by Council Member Russell and seconded by Council Member Brashers to 
have the second reading of Bill 20-19 by title only.  The vote was 8 Aye-Pool, Jones, Franklin, 
Wilson, Deichman, Brashers, Russell, and Self.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes was 
available to answer any questions regarding this bill.  A roll call vote was taken.  Council Member 
Wilson motioned for the passage of Bill 20-19.  Council Member Deichman seconded.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  The vote was 7 Aye-Jones, Franklin, Wilson, Deichman, Brashers, Russell, and 
Self.   0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

20-20 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the 
Execution of a STP-Urban Program Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission for the Design and Right of Way Acquisition for the Extension of the Shuyler 
Creek Trail. 

 Council Member Wilson motioned for the first reading of Bill 20-20 by title only.  Council 
Member Jones seconded.  The vote was 8 Aye-Self, Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Deichman, Russell, 
Brashers, and Jones.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Garrett Brickner provided an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Ussery reminded Council that this was a first read and to get with Mr. Brickner with 
any questions prior to the next meeting. 

Other Business (Resolutions)-None 

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron reported that yesterday the new resolution went into effect.  Mr. 
Cameron shared it was exciting to see business moving forward with the steps the businesses took to 
follow safety precautions.  Mr. Cameron shared he is proud of our businesses for stepping up. 

City Administrator David Cameron commended Mike Landis and Duane Compton for hand delivering 
letters to local businesses for clarity regarding the resolution.  Mr. Cameron shared he appreciates that 
level of service.   

City Administrator David Cameron updated Council that MoDOT has had some delays with projects but 
they will not impact the Hwy 174/60 Hwy project and they should open up bids this month.  The project 
is a go this summer. 

City Administrator David Cameron received notification today on a transportation safety study regarding 
railroad crossings and MoDOT received a grant to make improvements at the crossings.  They will be in 
town next week visiting with Andrew and Garrett.  Mr. Cameron appreciates MoDOT and the railroad 
for their work on this.  Mr. Cameron reached out to see if it included Farm Road 93.  Part of the 

Page 6Item # 2.



 

 3 | P a g e  
C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a y  0 5 ,  2 0 2 0  

agreement to close Farm Road 93 would be consideration of an overpass over MM that did not get 
included for funding. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared good that news sales tax receipts for March and are up 11% 
for the month and 9% for the year.  We still anticipate next month's going down but every month with 
additional will help offset any losses from COVID-19.  The message from a lot of business is not a lot of 
dips in their income.  Every additional dollar of sales tax is being set aside in the recovery account. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared we had our first ELT meeting in person today. We are 
anticipating City Council back in the Council Chambers or another facility if more space needed for the 
first meeting in June.  It was nice to have leadership together to discuss the next steps moving forward. 

City Administrator David Cameron announced the Community Center track will be opening next Monday 
and we will gradually open those facilities. 

Mayor Jeff Ussery shared good news after speaking to Clay Goddard from the  Springfield-Greene 
County Health Department.  They did testing on 142 people who work on the front lines at restaurants, 
stores, and other places that require customer facing contact with no symptoms.  Testing had not been 
done on people without symptoms previously due to the need to triage those tests to those with 
symptoms.  Mayor Ussery was happy to report that none of the people tested came back 
positive.  Mayor Ussery shared this is a testament to the community as it was a sampling of the area.   

Mayor Jeff Ussery shared it is so nice to see businesses opening with precautions in place.  They run 
their business, not the government and were doing these precautions without us telling them 
to.  Hopefully we can walk through this first phase without a spike or increase in numbers.  Thank you to 
the citizens who patronize the businesses in Republic as businesses were able to keep their doors open 
and maintain their businesses with this customer support.  

Adjournment 

Mayor Ussery adjourned the meeting at 6:46 p.m. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk    Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7Item # 2.



  Record Destruction Request Form  

Page 1 of 1 

MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE OF RECORDS TO BE 
DISPOSED 

DATE(S) OF 
DOCUMENTS 

RETENTION TIME 
NEEDED FOR 

RECORD 

GS 040 Grant Information Police Grant Information  2006-2011 3 years after 
submission of 

final report 
GS 012 Correspondence Police Correspondence 1999-2007 1 year 

GS 067 Vehicle Ownership and 
Maintenance Records 

Police Vehicle Records-no longer 
owned 

1999-2007 Retain until sold 
or disposed of. 

 

Page 8Item # 3.



Vendor No. & Name Added Added User

06909 - TreePans.com, Inc. 04/03/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06910 - Lawence County Record 04/06/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06912 - Southwest MO City Clerks & Finance Officers Assoc. 04/08/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06914 - Metro Credit Union 04/13/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06915 - Chagrin Safety Supply, LLC 04/14/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

06916 - Ozarks Transportation Organization 04/14/2020 Rachel Reich-Graef

Vendor Audit Report
For the City of Republic

Date Range:  04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020

Page 9Item # 4.



Date Customer

Overread/L

eak Leak In

 Water 

Gallons 

Adjusted 

Amount 

Adjusted

 Sewer Gallons 

Adjusted 

Amount 

Adjusted
4/22/2020 Jordon & Conni Addotta Leak Sprinkler system -                   0.00 11,900                    $112.69

4/22/2020 Kimberly Nicely Leak Outside Faucet 4,675               16.64 9,350                      $88.54

4/22/2020 William Greeson Leak Toilet 1,450               5.16 1,450                      $13.73

4/22/2020 Stanley Sides Leak Outside Faucet 1,284               4.57 2,567                      $24.31

4/22/2020 Stanley Ricks Leak Service Line 9,595               34.16 19,190                    $181.73

4/22/2020 Marilyn Burleson Leak Hot Water Heater 1,434               5.10 2,867                      $27.15

Billing Adjustments

Page 10Item # 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-20 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Authorizing the Execution of a STP-Urban Program 
Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission for the Design and Right of Way Acquisition for the 
Extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail. 

Submitted By: Garrett Brickner, Assistant Public Works Director 

Date: May 5, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

This agreement would allow the City of Republic to accept the grant awarded for design and right of way 

acquisition for the extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail to Elm Street/Farm Road 182 and Along Farm 

Road 182 to Wilson Creek National Battlefield. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Last fall, the City applied for a Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant through the 

Ozarks Transportation Organization for extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail to Wilsons Creek National 

Battlefield (the Battlefield). The city was informed that we could receive funding for engineering design 

and right-of-way (ROW) acquisition for the trail. The funding is an 80/20 split with the city paying 20% 

and the grant paying 80% of the estimated costs. The total estimated cost for design and ROW 

acquisition is $492,768 with the grant covering $394,214 and the city responsible for $98,554. The city 

will be solely responsible for overages exceeding the $394,214 the grant is awarding. Greene County will 

contribute in this grant by taking the lead on ROW acquisition. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of Bill 20-20. 

Page 11Item # 6.



BILL NO. 20-20 ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

 Page 1 of 2 ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A STP-URBAN PROGRAM AGREEMENT WITH 

THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR THE 
DESIGN AND RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE SHUYLER 

CREEK TRAIL.

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called "City" or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, in Resolution 19-R-37, the Council authorized the Community Development 
Department and other City departments to apply for a grant to extend the Shuyler Creek Trail; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (herein called 
“MoDOT”) has proposed a STP-Urban Program Agreement (herein called “Agreement”) with 
the City for the Extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail in the City (herein called “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, this Agreement will obligate the City to contribute 20% towards the Project, 
which is approximately $98,554.00.  The other 80% of the funding will come from federal funds; 
and  

WHEREAS, the Council finds that this Agreement is in the best interest of the City as the 
Project will increase safety and activities for the community and residents by adding to the City’s 
existing trail system. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That Mayor Jeff Ussery is authorized to execute on behalf of the City a STP-
Urban Program Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission not to exceed $98,554.00, said Agreement to be substantially in 
the form and content of the document attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of 
passage. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this ______ day of ____________ 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City 

Clerk BILL NO. 20-20       

Page 12Item # 6.



BILL NO. 20-20 ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

BILL NO. 20-20  Page 2 of 2 ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

Approved as to Form: _________________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  _______________________________________________________________ 

Page 13Item # 6.



CCO Form: FS11 
Approved:   07/96 (KMH) 
Revised:   03/17 (MWH)  
Modified:  

 

CFDA Number:         CFDA #20.205 
CFDA Title:         Highway Planning and Construction 
Award name/number:      STBG – 6900(813)    TIP# EN2010 
Award Year:         2020 
Federal Agency:         Federal Highway Administration, Department of Transportation  

 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
STP-URBAN PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
THIS STP-URBAN AGREEMENT is entered into by the Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission (hereinafter, "Commission") and the City of Republic, Greene 
County, Missouri (hereinafter, "City"). 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST) 23 U.S.C. 
§133, authorizes a Surface Transportation Program (STP) to fund transportation related 
projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to construct certain improvements, more specifically 
described below, using such STP funding; and  
 
 WHEREAS, those improvements are to be designed and constructed in 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 
representations in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 (1) PURPOSE:  The purpose of this Agreement is to grant the use of STP funds 
to the City. The improvement contemplated by this Agreement and designated as Project 
STBG-6900(813) involves design and right of way acquisition for the extension of the 
Shuyler Creek Trail to Elm Street/Farm Road 182 and Along Farm Road 182 to Wilson 
Creek Battlefield.  The City shall be responsible for all aspects of the construction of the 
improvement. 
 

(2) LOCATION:  The contemplated improvement designated as Project STBG-
6900(813) by the Commission is within the city limits of Republic, Missouri.  The general 
location of the improvement is shown on an attachment hereto marked "Exhibit A" and 
incorporated herein by reference.  More specific descriptions are as follows:  Design and 

Page 14Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

2 

right of way acquisition for the extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail to Elm Street/Farm 
Road 182 and Along Farm Road 182 to Wilson Creek Battlefield. 
 

(3) REASONABLE PROGRESS POLICY: The project as described in this 
agreement is subject to the reasonable progress policy set forth in the Local Public 
Agency (LPA) Manual and the final deadline specified in Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  In the event, the LPA Manual and the final deadline 
within Exhibit B conflict, the final deadline within Exhibit B controls. If the project is within 
a Transportation Management Area that has a reasonable progress policy in place, the 
project is subject to that policy. If the project is withdrawn for not meeting reasonable 
progress, the City agrees to repay the Commission for any progress payments made to 
the City for the project and agrees that the Commission may deduct progress payments 
made to the City from future payments to the City.  

 
 (4) LIMITS OF SYSTEM:  The limits of the surface transportation system for 
the City shall correspond to its geographical area as encompassed by the urban 
boundaries of the City as fixed cooperatively by the parties subject to approval by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 
 
 (5) ROUTES TO BE INCLUDED:  The City shall select the high traffic volume 
arterial and collector routes to be included in the surface transportation system, to be 
concurred with by the Commission, subject to approval by the FHWA.  It is understood by 
the parties that surface transportation system projects will be limited to the said surface 
transportation system, but that streets and arterial routes may be added to the surface 
transportation system, including transfers from other federal aid systems. 
 
 (6) INVENTORY AND INSPECTION:  The City shall: 
 
  (A) Furnish annually, upon request from the Commission or FHWA, 
information concerning conditions on streets included in the STP system under local 
jurisdiction indicating miles of system by pavement width, surface type, number of lanes 
and traffic volume category. 
 
  (B) Inspect and provide inventories of all bridges on that portion of the 
federal-aid highway systems under the jurisdiction of the City in accordance with the 
Federal Special Bridge Program, as set forth in 23 U.S.C. §144, and applicable 
amendments or regulations promulgated thereunder. 
 
 (7) CITY TO MAINTAIN: Upon completion of construction of this improvement, 
the City shall accept control and maintenance of the improved street and shall thereafter 
keep, control, and maintain the same as, and for all purposes, a part of the City street 
system at its own cost and expense and at no cost and expense whatsoever to the 
Commission.  Any traffic signals installed on highways maintained by the Commission will 
be turned over to the Commission upon completion of the project for maintenance.  All 

Page 15Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

3 

obligations of the Commission under this Agreement shall cease upon completion of the 
improvement. 
 
 

(8)   INDEMNIFICATION:   
 

(A) To the extent allowed or imposed by law, the City shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Commission, including its members and the Missouri 
Department of Transportation (MoDOT or Department) employees, from any claim or 
liability whether based on a claim for damages to real or personal property or to a person 
for any matter relating to or arising out of the City’s wrongful or negligent performance of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
 (B) The City will require any contractor procured by the City to work 

under this Agreement: 
 

   1. To obtain a no cost permit from the Commission’s district 
engineer prior to working on the Commission’s right-of-way, which shall be signed by an 
authorized contractor representative (a permit from the Commission’s district engineer 
will not be required for work outside of the Commission’s right-of-way); and 

 
   2. To carry commercial general liability insurance and 
commercial automobile liability insurance from a company authorized to issue insurance 
in Missouri, and to name the Commission, and MoDOT and its employees, as additional 
named insureds in amounts sufficient to cover the sovereign immunity limits for Missouri 
public entities as calculated by the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial 
Institutions and Professional Registration, and published annually in the Missouri Register 
pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. The City shall cause insurer to increase the 
insurance amounts in accordance with those published annually in the Missouri Register 
pursuant to Section 537.610, RSMo. 
 
  (C) In no event shall the language of this Agreement constitute or be 
construed as a waiver or limitation for either party’s rights or defenses with regard to each 
party’s applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as 
provided by federal and state constitution or law. 

 
 (9) CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS:  Parties agree that all construction 
under the STP for the City will be constructed in accordance with current MoDOT design 
criteria/specifications for urban construction unless separate standards for the surface 
transportation system have been established by the City and the Commission subject to 
the approval of the FHWA. 
 

(10) FEDERAL-AID PROVISIONS:  Because responsibility for the performance 
of all functions or work contemplated as part of this project is assumed by the City, and 
the City may elect to construct part of the improvement contemplated by this Agreement 

Page 16Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

4 

with its own forces, a copy of Section II and Section III, as contained in the United States 
Department of Transportation Form Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 1273 
"Required Contract Provisions, Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," is attached and 
made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit C.  Wherever the term "the contractor" or words 
of similar import appear in these sections, the term “the City” is to be substituted.  The 
City agrees to abide by and carry out the condition and obligations of "the contractor" as 
stated in Section II, Equal Opportunity, and Section III, Nonsegregated Facilities, as set 
out in Form FHWA 1273. 

 
(11) ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY:       With respect to the acquisition of  

right of way necessary for the completion of the project, City shall acquire any additional 
necessary right of way required for the project and in doing so agrees that it will comply 
with all applicable federal laws, rules and regulations, including 42 U.S.C. 4601-4655, the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act, as amended and any 
regulations promulgated in connection with the Act.  

 
  (12) REIMBURSEMENT:  The cost of the contemplated improvements will be 
borne by the United States Government and by the City as follows: 

 
(A)      Any federal funds for project activities shall only be available for 

reimbursement of eligible costs which have been incurred by City.  Any costs incurred by 
City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from the Commission 
are not reimbursable costs.  All federally funded projects are required to have a project 
end date.  Any costs incurred after the project end date are not eligible for reimbursement.  
The federal share for this project will be 80 percent (80%) not to exceed $394,214.00.  
The calculated federal share for seeking federal reimbursement of participating costs for 
the herein improvements will be determined by dividing the total federal funds applied to 
the project by the total participating costs.   Any costs for the herein improvements which 
exceed any federal reimbursement or are not eligible for federal reimbursement shall be 
the sole responsibility of City.  The Commission shall not be responsible for any costs 
associated with the herein improvement unless specifically identified in this Agreement or 
subsequent written amendments.   
 
  (B) The total reimbursement otherwise payable to the City under this 
Agreement is subject to reduction, offset, levy, judgment, collection or withholding, if there 
is a reduction in the available federal funding, or to satisfy other obligations of the City to 
the Commission, the State of Missouri, the United States, or another entity acting 
pursuant to a lawful court order, which City obligations or liability are created by law, 
judicial action, or by pledge, contract or other enforceable instrument.  Any costs incurred 
by the City prior to authorization from FHWA and notification to proceed from the 
Commission are not reimbursable costs. 
 
 (13) PERMITS:  The City shall secure any necessary approvals or permits from 
the Federal Government and the State of Missouri as required to permit the construction 
and maintenance of the contemplated improvements. 

Page 17Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

5 

 
 (14) TRAFFIC CONTROL:  The plans shall provide for handling traffic with signs, 
signal and marking in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD). 
 
 (15) WORK ON STATE RIGHT OF WAY:  If any contemplated improvements 
for Project STBG-6900(813) will involve work on the state's right of way, the City will 
provide reproducible final plans to the Commission relating to such work. 
 
 (16) DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBEs):  At time of 
processing the required project agreements with the FHWA, the Commission will advise 
the City of any required goals for participation by DBEs to be included in the City’s 
proposal for the work to be performed.  The City shall submit for Commission approval a 
DBE goal or plan.  The City shall comply with the plan or goal that is approved by the 
Commission and all requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26, as amended. 
 
 (17) NOTICE TO BIDDERS:  The City shall notify the prospective bidders that 
disadvantaged business enterprises shall be afforded full and affirmative opportunity to 
submit bids in response to the invitation and will not be discriminated against on grounds 
of race, color, sex, or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
 (18) PROGRESS PAYMENTS: The City may request progress payments be 
made for the herein improvements as work progresses but not more than once every two 
weeks.  Progress payments must be submitted monthly.  All progress payment requests 
must be submitted for reimbursement within 90 days of the project completion date for 
the final phase of work.  The City shall repay any progress payments which involve 
ineligible costs. 
 

(19) PROMPT PAYMENTS:  Progress invoices submitted to MoDOT for 
reimbursement more than thirty (30) calendar days after the date of the vendor invoice 
shall also include documentation that the vendor was paid in full for the work identified in 
the progress invoice.  Examples of proof of payment may include a letter or e-mail from 
the vendor, lien waiver or copies of cancelled checks.  Reimbursement will not be made 
on these submittals until proof of payment is provided.  Progress invoices submitted to 
MoDOT for reimbursement within thirty (30) calendar days of the date on the vendor 
invoice will be processed for reimbursement without proof of payment to the vendor.  If 
the City has not paid the vendor prior to receiving reimbursement, the City must pay the 
vendor within two (2) business days of receipt of funds from MoDOT. 
 
 (20) OUTDOOR ADVERTISING:  The City further agrees that the right of way 
provided for any STP improvement will be held and maintained inviolate for public 
highway or street purposes, and will enact and enforce any ordinances or regulations 
necessary to prohibit the presence of billboards or other advertising signs or devices and 
the vending or sale of merchandise on such right of way, and will remove or cause to be 
removed from such right of way any sign, private installation of any nature, or any privately 

Page 18Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

6 

owned object or thing which may interfere with the free flow of traffic or impair the full use 
and safety of the highway or street.  
 
 (21) FINAL AUDIT:  The Commission will perform a final audit of project costs.  
The United States Government shall reimburse the City, through the Commission, any 
monies due.  The City shall refund any overpayments as determined by the final audit. 
 
 (22) AUDIT REQUIREMENT:   If the City expend(s) seven hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($750,000) or more in a year in federal financial assistance it is required 
to have an independent annual audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200.  A 
copy of the audit report shall be submitted to MoDOT within the earlier of thirty (30) days 
after receipt of the auditor's report(s), or nine (9) months after the end of the audit period.  
Subject to the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, if the City expend(s) less than seven 
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) a year, the City may be exempt from auditing 
requirements for that year but records must be available for review or audit by applicable 
state and federal authorities. 
 
 (23) FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT OF 
2006:  The City shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006, as amended.  This Agreement is 
subject to the award terms within 2 C.F.R. Part 170. 
 
 (24) VENUE:  It is agreed by the parties that any action at law, suit in equity, or 
other judicial proceeding to enforce or construe this Agreement, or regarding its alleged 
breach, shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. 
 
 (25) LAW OF MISSOURI TO GOVERN:  This Agreement shall be construed 
according to the laws of the State of Missouri.  The City shall comply with all local, state 
and federal laws and regulations relating to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (26) AMENDMENTS:  Any change in this Agreement, whether by modification 
or supplementation, must be accomplished by a formal contract amendment signed and 
approved by the duly authorized representatives of the City and the Commission. 
 
 (27) COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE:  The Commission's Southwest District 
Engineer is designated as the Commission's representative for the purpose of 
administering the provisions of this Agreement.  The Commission's representative may 
designate by written notice other persons having the authority to act on behalf of the 
Commission in furtherance of the performance of this Agreement. 
 
 (28) NOTICES:  Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be 
given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given three (3) days after delivery 
by United States mail, regular mail postage prepaid, or upon receipt by personal or 
facsimile delivery, addressed as follows: 
 

Page 19Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

7 

(A) To the City: 
Andrew Nelson, Public Works Director 
City of Republic 
204 N. Main Ave. 

   Republic, MO 65738 
Phone # 417-732-3150 
Fax # 417-732-3199  
anelson@republicmo.com 

 
  (B) To the Commission: 
   Chad Zickefoose, LPA Program Manager 

MoDOT Southwest District 
3025 East Kearney Street, Springfield, MO 65803 
Phone # 417-895-7638 
chad.zickefoose@modot.mo.gov 
 

or to such other place as the parties may designate in accordance with this Agreement.  
To be valid, facsimile delivery shall be followed by delivery of the original document, or a 
clear and legible copy thereof, within three (3) business days of the date of facsimile 
transmission of that document. 
 
 (29) NONDISCRIMINATION ASSURANCE:  With regard to work under this 
Agreement, the City agrees as follows: 
 
  (A)  Civil Rights Statutes:  The City shall comply with all state and federal 
statutes relating to nondiscrimination, including but not limited to Title VI and Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000d and §2000e, et seq.), as well 
as any applicable titles of the "Americans with Disabilities Act" (42 U.S.C. §12101, et 
seq.).  In addition, if the City is providing services or operating programs on behalf of the 
Department or the Commission, it shall comply with all applicable provisions of Title II of 
the "Americans with Disabilities Act". 

 
(B) Administrative Rules:  The City shall comply with the administrative 

rules of the United States Department of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in 
federally-assisted programs of the United States Department of Transportation (49 C.F.R. 
Part 21) which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement. 
 
  (C) Nondiscrimination:  The City shall not discriminate on grounds of the 
race, color, religion, sex, disability, national origin, age or ancestry of any individual in the 
selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases 
of equipment.  The City shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 
prohibited by 49 C.F.R. §21.5, including employment practices. 
 
  (D) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Material 
and Equipment:  These assurances concerning nondiscrimination also apply to 

Page 20Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

8 

subcontractors and suppliers of the City.  These apply to all solicitations either by 
competitive bidding or negotiation made by the City for work to be performed under a 
subcontract including procurement of materials or equipment.  Each potential 
subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the City of the requirements of this 
Agreement relative to nondiscrimination on grounds of the race, color, religion, sex, 
disability or national origin, age or ancestry of any individual. 
 
  (E) Information and Reports:  The City shall provide all information and 
reports required by this Agreement, or orders and instructions issued pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and 
its facilities as may be determined by the Commission or the United States Department 
of Transportation to be necessary to ascertain compliance with other contracts, orders 
and instructions.  Where any information required of the City is in the exclusive 
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the City shall so 
certify to the Commission or the United States Department of Transportation as 
appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 
 
 (F) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event the City fails to comply 
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the Commission shall impose 
such contract sanctions as it or the United States Department of Transportation may 
determine to be appropriate, including but not limited to: 
 
   1. Withholding of payments under this Agreement until the City 
complies; and/or 
 
   2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, or both. 
 

 (G) Incorporation of Provisions:  The City shall include the provisions of 
paragraph (29) of this Agreement in every subcontract, including procurements of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempted by the statutes, executive order, 
administrative rules or instructions issued by the Commission or the United States 
Department of Transportation.  The City will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or procurement as the Commission or the United States Department of 
Transportation may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions 
for noncompliance; provided that in the event the City becomes involved or is threatened 
with litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the City may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States. 
 
 (30) ACCESS TO RECORDS:  The City and its contractors must maintain all 
records relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to invoices, payrolls, etc.  
These records must be available at no charge to the FHWA and the Commission and/or 
their designees or representatives during the period of this Agreement and any extension, 

Page 21Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

9 

and for a period of three (3) years after the date on which the City receives reimbursement 
of their final invoice from the Commission. 
 

(31)  CONFLICT OF INTEREST:   The City shall comply with conflict of interest 
policies identified in 23 CFR 1.33.  A conflict of interest occurs when an entity has a 
financial or personal interest in a federally funded project. 

 
 (32) MANDATORY DISCLOSURES:  The City shall comply with 2 CFR 200.113 
and disclose, in a timely manner, in writing all violations of Federal criminal law involving 
fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Federal award. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the 

date last written below. 
 
 Executed by the City this _____ day of ______________, 2020. 
 
 Executed by the Commission this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 
 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND   CITY OF REPUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 
                                                                  By                                                             
 
Title                                                        Title                                                          
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  By                                                             
Secretary to the Commission   
       Title                                                          
 
Approved as to Form:    Approved as to Form: 
 
 
                                                                  By  _____________________________                                                         
Commission Counsel 
       Title  ___________________________ 
 
        
       Ordinance No:________________                                         
 
 

Page 22Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

10 

Exhibit A - Location of Project 
 
 

  

Page 23Item # 6.



 

 
 

  
 

11 

Exhibit B – Project Schedule 
 
 
Project Description: STBG-6900(813) – Design and right of way acquisition for the 
extension of the Shuyler Creek Trail to Elm Street/Farm Road 182 and Along Farm 
Road 182 to Wilson Creek Battlefield. 
 
 
 

Task  
Date 

Date funding is made available or allocated to recipient 4/2020 

Solicitation for Professional Engineering Services 
(advertised) 
 

 

Engineering Services Contract Approved 8/2020 

Conceptual Study (if applicable)   

Preliminary and Right-of-Way Plans Submittal 12/2020 

Right-of Way Plans Approved 7/2021 

Right-of-Way Request for Acquisition Authority Submitted 8/2021 

Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Submittal 12/2021 

Plans, Specifications & Estimate (PS&E) Approval  4/2022 

Right-of-Way Clearance completed (REQUIRED) 
 

8/2022 

 
 

 

*Note: the dates established in the schedule above will be used in the applicable ESC 
between the sponsor agency and consultant firm. 
 
**Schedule dates are approximate as the project schedule will be actively managed and 
issues mitigated through the project delivery process.  The Award Date or Planning Study 
Date deliverable is not approximate and requires request to adjust.  

  

Page 24Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

FHWA-1273 --  Revised May 1, 2012  
 
 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS  
FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
 
 

 
I.  General   
II.  Nondiscrimination 
III. Nonsegregated Facilities 
IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions 
V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 

Provisions 
VI.  Subletting or Assigning the Contract 
VII. Safety: Accident Prevention 
VIII.  False Statements Concerning Highway Projects 
IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water 

Pollution Control Act 
X.  Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and 

Debarment Requirements 
XI.  Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for 

Lobbying 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian 
Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access 
Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only) 
 
 
I.  GENERAL 
 
1.  Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each 
construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding 
emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal).  The 
contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each 
subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services).   
 
The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are 
incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase 
order, rental agreement or agreement for other services.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.   
 
Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-
build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, 
purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for 
supplies or services).  The design-builder shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor 
or service provider. 
  
Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid 
proposal or request for proposal documents, however, the 
Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not 
referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier 
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services related to a 
construction contract). 
 
2.  Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following 
sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work 
performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization 
and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's 
immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the 
contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. 

  
3.   A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these 
Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for 
withholding of progress payments, withholding of final 
payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment 
or any other action determined to be appropriate by the 
contracting agency and FHWA. 
 
4.  Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, 
the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose 
within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid 
highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on 
parole, supervised release, or probation.  The term Federal-aid 
highway does not include roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors. 
 
 
II.  NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are 
applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all 
related construction subcontracts of $10,000 or more.  The 
provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material 
supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.   
 
In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply 
with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 
29 CFR 1625-1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and related 
regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR 
Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with:  the 
requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-
1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding $10,000, 
the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity 
Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3. 
 
Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to 
determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the 
policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 
CFR 1625-1627.  The contracting agency and the FHWA have 
the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 
Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR 
Parts 21, 26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix 
A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. 
Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.   
 
1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment 
opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take 
affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth 
under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (28 CFR 35, 
29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 and 49 CFR 27) 
and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the 
provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 
U.S.C. 140 shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative 
action standards for the contractor's project activities under 

Page 25Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR 
35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference in this 
contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor 
agrees to comply with the following minimum specific 
requirement activities of EEO: 
 

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and 
the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every 
good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all 
of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review 
of activities under the contract. 
 
    b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the 
following statement: 
 

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, color, 
national origin, age or disability.  Such action shall include: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 
including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-
job training." 

 
2.  EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make 
known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have 
the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively 
administering and promoting an active EEO program and who 
must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do 
so. 
 
3.  Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's 
staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and 
discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who 
are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully 
cognizant of, and will implement, the contractor's EEO policy 
and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade 
and classification of employment.  To ensure that the above 
agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a 
minimum: 
 

a.  Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office 
employees will be conducted before the start of work and then 
not less often than once every six months, at which time the 
contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be 
reviewed and explained.  The meetings will be conducted by 
the EEO Officer. 
  

b.  All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be 
given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering 
all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within 
thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor. 
 

c.  All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for 
the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the 
contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and 
women. 
  

d.  Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO 
policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, 
applicants for employment and potential employees. 
 

e.  The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to 
implement such policy will be brought to the attention of 
employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or 
other appropriate means. 
 

4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the 
contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the 
notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer."  All such 
advertisements will be placed in publications having a large 
circulation among minorities and women in the area from 
which the project work force would normally be derived. 
 

a.  The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid 
bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct 
recruitment through public and private employee referral 
sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women.  To 
meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of 
potential minority group employees, and establish with such 
identified sources procedures whereby minority and women 
applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment 
consideration. 
 

b.  In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining 
agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the 
contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that 
agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's 
compliance with EEO contract provisions.  Where 
implementation of such an agreement has the effect of 
discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the 
contractor to do the same, such implementation violates 
Federal nondiscrimination provisions. 
 

c.  The contractor will encourage its present employees to 
refer minorities and women as applicants for employment.  
Information and procedures with regard to referring such 
applicants will be discussed with employees. 
 
5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and 
employee benefits shall be established and administered, and 
personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, 
promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be 
taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability.  The following procedures shall be 
followed: 
 

a.  The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project 
sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities 
do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site 
personnel. 
 

b.  The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of 
wages paid within each classification to determine any 
evidence of discriminatory wage practices. 
 

c.  The contractor will periodically review selected personnel 
actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of 
discrimination.  Where evidence is found, the contractor will 
promptly take corrective action.  If the review indicates that the 
discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such 
corrective action shall include all affected persons. 
 

d.  The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of 
alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection 
with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve 
such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action 
within a reasonable time.  If the investigation indicates that the 
discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, 
such corrective action shall include such other persons.  Upon 
completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform 
every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal. 
 
6. Training and Promotion: 
 

a.  The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and 
increasing the skills of minorities and women who are 

Page 26Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

applicants for employment or current employees.  Such efforts 
should be aimed at developing full journey level status 
employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.  
 

b.  Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements 
and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the 
contractor shall make full use of training programs, i.e., 
apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the 
geographical area of contract performance.  In the event a 
special provision for training is provided under this contract, 
this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the 
special provision.  The contracting agency may reserve 
training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance 
in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a). 
 

c.  The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each. 
 

d.  The contractor will periodically review the training and 
promotion potential of employees who are minorities and 
women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for 
such training and promotion. 
 
7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon 
unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good 
faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to 
increase opportunities for minorities and women.  Actions by 
the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's 
association acting as agent, will include the procedures set 
forth below: 
 

a.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in 
cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed 
toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership 
in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women 
so that they may qualify for higher paying employment. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an 
EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such 
union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or 
disability. 
 

c.  The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral 
practices and policies of the labor union except that to the 
extent such information is within the exclusive possession of 
the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such 
information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to 
the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have 
been made to obtain such information. 
 

d.  In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor 
with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth 
in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, 
through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment 
vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, age or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified 
and/or qualifiable minorities and women.  The failure of a union 
to provide sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to 
provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective 
bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the 
requirements of this paragraph.   In the event the union referral 
practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations 
pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these 
special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the 
contracting agency. 
 
8.  Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / 
Employees with Disabilities:  The contractor must be familiar 

with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established there 
under.  Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in 
all employment activities unless to do so would cause an 
undue hardship. 
 
9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials 
and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age or disability in the selection and retention 
of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and 
leases of equipment.  The contractor shall take all necessary 
and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the 
administration of this contract. 
 

a.  The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors and 
suppliers and lessors of their EEO obligations under this 
contract. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure 
subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations. 
 
 
10. Assurance Required by 49 CFR 26.13(b): 
 

a.  The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State 
DOT’s U.S. DOT-approved DBE program are incorporated by 
reference. 
 

b.  The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and 
administration of DOT-assisted contracts.  Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach 
of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy as the contracting agency 
deems appropriate. 
 
11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such 
records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO 
requirements.  Such records shall be retained for a period of 
three years following the date of the final payment to the 
contractor for all contract work and shall be available at 
reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA. 
 

a.  The records kept by the contractor shall document the 
following: 
 
    (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-
minority group members and women employed in each work 
classification on the project; 
 

(2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation 
with unions, when applicable, to increase employment 
opportunities for minorities and women; and 

 
(3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, 

training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women;  
 

b.  The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual 
report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of 
the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and 
non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work 
classification required by the contract work.  This information is 
to be reported on Form FHWA-1391.  The staffing data should 
represent the project work force on board in all or any part of 
the last payroll period preceding the end of July.  If on-the-job 
training is being required by special provision, the contractor 

Page 27Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

will be required to collect and report training data.  The 
employment data should reflect the work force on board during 
all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of 
July. 
 
 
III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of 
$10,000 or more. 
 
The contractor must ensure that facilities provided for 
employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin cannot 
result.  The contractor may neither require such segregated 
use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by 
employee custom.  The contractor's obligation extends further 
to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their 
services at any location, under the contractor's control, where 
the facilities are segregated.  The term "facilities" includes 
waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, 
time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms, and other 
storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, 
recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing 
provided for employees.  The contractor shall provide separate 
or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping 
areas to assure privacy between sexes. 
 
 
IV.  DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS 

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
projects exceeding $2,000 and to all related subcontracts and 
lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size).  The 
requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-
way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid 
highway.  This excludes roadways functionally classified as 
local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt.  
Contracting agencies may elect to apply these requirements to 
other projects. 

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of 
Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 “Contract provisions and 
related matters” with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-
1273 format and FHWA program requirements. 

1.  Minimum wages 

a.  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon 
the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less 
often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or 
rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are 
permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 
under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of 
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents 
thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may 
be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers 
and mechanics. 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona 
fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages 
paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions 

of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions 
made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not 
less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate 
wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for 
the classification of work actually performed, without regard to 
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification 
may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, 
That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed. 
The wage determination (including any additional classification 
and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this 
section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be 
posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where 
it can be easily seen by the workers. 

b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of 
laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in 
the wage determination and which is to be employed under the 
contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(i) The work to be performed by the classification 
requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination; and 

(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the 
construction industry; and 

(iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide 
fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the 
wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be 
employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of 
the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment 
Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 
Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and 
so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting 
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is 
necessary. 

(3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics 
to be employed in the classification or their representatives, 
and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the 
contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the 
views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Wage and Hour Administrator for 
determination. The Wage and Hour Administrator, or an 
authorized representative, will issue a determination within 
30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or 

Page 28Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that 
additional time is necessary. 

(4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where 
appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 
1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing 
work in the classification under this contract from the first 
day on which work is performed in the classification. 

c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the 
contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination 
or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash 
equivalent thereof. 

d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or 
other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of 
Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, 
that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have 
been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor 
to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of 
obligations under the plan or program. 

2.  Withholding  

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from 
the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-
assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so 
much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 
including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or 
helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part 
of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency 
may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as 
may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations 
have ceased. 

3.  Payrolls and basic records  

a.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and 
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers 
and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records 
shall contain the name, address, and social security number of 
each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates 
of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs 
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents 
thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the 
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that 
the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a 
plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-

Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show 
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, 
that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the 
laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the 
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such 
benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under 
approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the 
applicable programs. 

b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in 
which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
the contracting agency.   The payrolls submitted shall set out 
accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social 
security numbers and home addresses shall not be included 
on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to 
include an individually identifying number for each employee ( 
e.g. , the last four digits of the employee's social security 
number). The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is 
available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division 
Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm 
or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for 
the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. 
Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, 
and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency 
for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and 
Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and 
social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own 
records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency.. 

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a 
“Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or 
subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the 
payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following: 

(i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be provided under §5.5 (a)(3)(ii) of 
Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is 
being maintained under §5.5 (a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 
CFR part 5, and that such information is correct and 
complete; 

(ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each 
helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly 
wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 
and that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than 
permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR 
part 3; 

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 
less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or 
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract. 

Page 29Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

(3) The weekly submission of a properly executed 
certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 
WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
“Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of 
this section. 

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of 
title 31 of the United States Code. 

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records 
required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for 
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the 
FHWA,  or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours 
on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the 
required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, 
after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or 
the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or 
guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may 
be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4.  Apprentices and trainees  

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).  

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with 
a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a 
person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but 
who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for 
probationary employment as an apprentice.  

 The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job 
site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio 
permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under 
the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an 
apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any 
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 
ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 
for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is 
performing construction on a project in a locality other than 
that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly 
rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered 
program shall be observed.  

 Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly 

rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with 
the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the 
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, 
apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different 
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, 
fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.  

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an 
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved. 

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).  

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be 
permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the 
work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and 
individually registered in a program which has received prior 
approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration.  

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be 
greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration.  

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified 
in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall 
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention 
fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee 
rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. 
In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in 
excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the work actually performed.  

In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no 
longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of 
apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR part 30. 

Page 30Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

d.  Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). 

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and 
skill training programs which have been certified by the 
Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection 
with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not 
subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 
The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and 
trainees under such programs will be established by the 
particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to 
journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of 
the particular program. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.   The 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 
3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts.   The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the 
subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment.   A breach of the 
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination 
of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act 
requirements.  All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 
are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising 
out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not 
be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such 
disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures 
of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 
7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the 
contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 
employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of eligibility. 

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an 
interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to 
be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person 
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue 
of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the 
U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

 
 
V.   CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY 
STANDARDS ACT  

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction 
contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the 
overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to 
the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6.  As 
used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics 
include watchmen and guards. 

1. Overtime requirements.   No contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the contract work which may require 
or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to 
work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated 
damages.  In the event of any violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph (1.) of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor 
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done 
under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such 
District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in 
paragraph (1.) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each 
calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty 
hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the 
clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. 
The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action 
or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any 
other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same 
prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this 
section. 

4. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) 
through (4.) of this section and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) through (4.) of this 
section. 

 
 
 

Page 31Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

 
VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts on the National Highway System. 
 
1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization 
contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a 
greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of 
the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items 
designated by the contracting agency.  Specialty items may be 
performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 
specialty items performed may be deducted from the total 
original contract price before computing the amount of work 
required to be performed by the contractor's own organization 
(23 CFR 635.116). 
 

a.  The term “perform work with its own organization” refers 
to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and 
equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or 
without operators.  Such term does not include employees or 
equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, 
agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees.  The 
term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased 
employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant 
Federal and State regulatory requirements.  Leased 
employees may only be included in this term if the prime 
contractor meets all of the following conditions: 
 
  (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the 
supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased 
employees; 

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality 
of the work of the leased employees; 

   (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or 
exclude individual employees from work on the project; and 

(4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for 
the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the 
submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all 
other Federal regulatory requirements. 

 
b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work 

that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or 
equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting 
organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the 
contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract. 
 
  2. The contract amount upon which the requirements set forth 
in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of 
material and manufactured products which are to be 
purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract 
provisions. 
 
3. The contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent 
or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to 
direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract 
requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations 
(regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its 
own organizational resources (supervision, management, and 
engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is 
necessary to assure the performance of the contract. 
 
4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or 
otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the 
contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such 
consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the 
contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the 
contract.  Written consent will be given only after the 
contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is 

evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions 
and requirements of the prime contract. 
 
5. The 30% self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is 
not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting 
agencies may establish their own self-performance 
requirements. 
 
 
VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
1.  In the performance of this contract the contractor shall 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws 
governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The 
contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and 
protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it 
determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be 
reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of 
employees on the job and the safety of the public and to 
protect property in connection with the performance of the 
work covered by the contract. 
 
2.  It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a 
condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into 
pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any 
subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance 
of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her 
health or safety, as determined under construction safety and 
health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary 
of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 
 
3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract 
that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative 
thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract 
performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance 
with the construction safety and health standards and to carry 
out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C.3704). 
 
 
VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
  In order to assure high quality and durable construction in 
conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high 
degree of reliability on statements and representations made 
by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-
aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned 
with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, 
and honestly as possible.  Willful falsification, distortion, or 
misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the 
project is a violation of Federal law.  To prevent any 
misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and 
similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each 
Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR 635) in one or more 
places where it is readily available to all persons concerned 
with the project: 
 
 
18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows: 
 

Page 32Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

  "Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United 
States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a 
person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any 
false statement, false representation, or false report as to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to 
be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to 
be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the 
submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs 
of construction on any highway or related project submitted for 
approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or 
 
  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false 
representation, false report or false claim with respect to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to 
be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in 
connection with the construction of any highway or related 
project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or 
 
  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false 
representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, 
or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid 
Roads Act approved July 1, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended 
and supplemented; 
 
  Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 
years or both." 
 
 
IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this 
contract, or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, 
Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as 
appropriate, will be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 
 
  1. That any person who is or will be utilized in the 
performance of this contract is not prohibited from receiving an 
award due to a violation of Section 508 of the Clean Water Act 
or Section 306 of the Clean Air Act.   
  2. That the contractor agrees to include or cause to be 
included the requirements of paragraph (1) of this Section X in 
every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as 
the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such requirements. 
 
 
X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 
SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier 
subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant 
contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA 
approval or that is estimated to cost $25,000 or more –  as 
defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 
 
 
 
  1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:  
  
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
first tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out 
below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 

covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification 
set out below. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the department or agency's 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, 
failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person 
from participation in this transaction. 
 
    c. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting 
agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later 
determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 
 
    d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom 
this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
 
    e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person,"  "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  “First Tier Covered 
Transactions” refers to any covered transaction between a 
grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such 
as the prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered 
Transactions” refers to any covered transaction under a First 
Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier 
Participant” refers to the participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal 
funds (such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier 
Participant” refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).  
 
    f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting 
this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by 
the department or agency entering into this transaction. 
 
    g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," 
provided by the department or contracting agency, entering 
into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower 
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 
covered transactions exceeding the $25,000 threshold. 
 
    h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous.  A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration. 
 

Page 33Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

    i.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require the establishment of a system of records in order to 
render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of the prospective participant 
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by 
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause 
or default. 
 
* * * * * 
 
2.  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier 
Participants: 
 
a.  The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 
 
    (1)   Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participating in covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 
 
    (2)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under 
a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
    (3)   Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and 
 
    (4)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
  b.   Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to 
any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
  2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 
 
(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other 
lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or 
estimated to cost $25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 
1200) 
 
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
lower tier is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department, or agency with which 

this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
    c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant 
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances. 
 
    d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  You may contact the person to 
which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a 
copy of those regulations.  “First Tier Covered Transactions” 
refers to any covered transaction between a grantee or 
subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant (such as the 
prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered Transactions” 
refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered 
Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” 
refers to the participant who has entered into a covered 
transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds 
(such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier 
Participant” refers any participant who has entered into a 
covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers). 
 
    e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by 
submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into 
any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated. 
 
    f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding 
the $25,000 threshold. 
 
    g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Excluded 
Parties List System website (https://www.epls.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration.   
 
    h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require establishment of a system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 

Page 34Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment. 
 
* * * * * 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier 
Participants: 
 
  1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by 
submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in 
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. 
 
  2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to 
certify to any of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 
 
* * * * * 
 
XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT 
FUNDS FOR LOBBYING 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed 
$100,000 (49 CFR 20). 
 
  1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and 
submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 
 
    a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
 
    b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
  2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 
entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 
U.S.C. 1352.  Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
  3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its 
bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier 
subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and that all such 
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 35Item # 6.



 
 

Exhibit C 
 

 

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS 
PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT 
HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS 
ROAD CONTRACTS 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded 
under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965. 
 
  1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor 
undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done 
as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who 
regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL 
wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the 
Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is 
situated, except: 
 
    a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in 
the area are not available. 
 
    b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ 
supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to 
assure an efficient execution of the contract work. 
 
    c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to 
present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective 
bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident 
persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not 
exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed 
by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in 
subparagraph (4) below. 
 
  2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State 
Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the 
laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform 
the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in 
each classification, (c) the date on which the participant 
estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other 
pertinent information required by the State Employment 
Service to complete the job order form.  The job order may be 
placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by 
telephone.  If during the course of the contract work, the 
information submitted by the contractor in the original job order 
is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify 
the State Employment Service. 
 
  3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified 
job applicants referred to him by the State Employment 
Service.  The contractor is not required to grant employment to 
any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to 
perform the classification of work required. 
 
  4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by 
the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State 
Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job 
applicants to the contractor, or less than the number 
requested, the State Employment Service will forward a 
certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of 
applicants.  Such certificate shall be made a part of the 
contractor's permanent project records.  Upon receipt of this 
certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not 
normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the 
certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) 
above. 
 
    5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the 
contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the 
use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian 
region.   
 

  6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 
through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work 
which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work. 
 
 
 
 

Page 36Item # 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-21 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving Amending the Zoning Code and Official Map by 
Changing the Classification of Approximately 23.5 Acres, Located at 
the 7500 Block of West Farm Road 174, from Agricultural (Ag) to High 
Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H). 

Submitted By: Community Development Department 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

The Rader Trust has applied to change the Zoning Classification of (23.5) acres of property located at 

7500 Block of West Farm Road 174 from Agricultural (AG) to High Density Single-Family Residential 

(R1-H). 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately (23.5) acres of land 

located at the 7500 Block of West Farm Road 174.  The property does not contain any structures and is 

currently utilized for agricultural purposes only.    

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential development through 

proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are described generally 

throughout the Plan, with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations to infrastructure 

capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

The Plan also more particularly describes appropriate future land uses through the depiction of a 

“Future Land Use Map” (FLUM).  In this case, the FLUM depicts the subject property as having a Low 

Density Residential FLUM designation.  The City’s Adopted 2005 Land Use Plan has identified the “Low 

Density Residential” Future Land Use Map designation as “ Single-Family Residential Development at 

1-6 units per acre,” which includes the Low Density Single-Family Residential (R1-L) at 4 dwelling 

units/acre, Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) at 5 dwelling units/acre, and High Density 

Single-Family Residential (R1-H) at 6 dwelling units/acre.   

The 2005 Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to residential development, 

as follows: 

Page 37Item # 7.



 

 
 

 Goal:  Cost-effective Private Development Density.  Encourage higher density development that 
will reduce the amount of infrastructure and cost to the developer and reduce the maintenance 
costs by the City. 

 Objective:  Use the Land Use Plan to promote and guide the development of land at 
higher densities to reduce the amount of infrastructure constructed within the City. 

 Policies:   

 Plan for higher density development that will reduce the cost of maintenance of 
new infrastructure improvements, such as water, sanitary sewer, stormwater 
and roads. 

 Goal:  Diversify the Republic Housing Market. 

 Objective:  Promote all types of residential development. 

 Goal:  Improve the quality of all types of housing in the City. 

 Objective:  Encourage the development of high-quality housing regardless of the size, 
type, and density of housing being constructed. 

The general trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property (along East Hines) in recent 
years has been the development of residential subdivisions. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

The subject property is surrounded by High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) to the north, Twelve 

Stones Planned Development District (PDD) to the west, Greene County Agricultural zoned property to 

the east, and Greene County Suburban Residential to the south. 

The land uses permitted in the High-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) Zoning District include 

single-family dwellings, residential accessory structures, golf courses, country clubs, and schools.   

Capacity To Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:  This site is not currently served by City of Republic water or 

sanitary sewer service.  The site is in proximity to a ten (10) inch water main and eight (8) inch sanitary 

sewer main at the eastern termination of East Timber Oak Street, approximately 345 feet from the 

western boundary line of the subject property; connection to these mains will require an off-site Utility 

Easement and agreement with the owner of the Twelve Stones PDD to the west.  The sanitary sewer 

flows to the Shuyler Creek Lift Station and then through a force main to the Wastewater Treatment 

Facility; the Lift Station and Treatment Facility currently have capacity.  The City’s water system 

currently has capacity to serve a potential development; final evaluations of capacity will be performed 

during subsequent development review. 

Alternatives to connecting to different points in the City’s municipal water and sewer systems may be 

available and will be reviewed at the time of development review.   

Transportation:  The subject parcel is currently accessible, for agricultural purposes only from an access 

point on West Farm Road 174 from the adjacent property to the east owned by the Rader Trust; 

subsequent development of the subject parcel will require review of new entrances(s) and/or roads 

identified on the Major Thoroughfare Plan (MTP) through the Preliminary Platting process.  

Page 38Item # 7.



 

 

The Republic City Code will require the development of the subject property to include the extension of 

internal public streets to boundary lines, sidewalks, and the construction of Bailey Avenue from West 

Farm Road 174 to the southern boundary line as required by the Major Thoroughfare Plan, as well as the 

dedication of deficient Right-of-Way along West Farm Road 174.  

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) has been completed by the Applicant and reviewed by the City; the Report 

indicated no major improvements are needed to the City’s existing transportation system. 

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

Extent to which Proposed Amendment Creates Nonconformities 

Any existing agricultural uses presently conducted on the subject property would be permitted to 

continue as is at the time of rezone until such time as the use is altered in a way that would remove that 

lawfully existing nonconforming status.  Types of alterations that would cause the removal of that status 

include redevelopment, expansion of the nonconforming use, substantial destruction of the 

nonconformity, etc. 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) to be generally consistent with the 

goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan, consistent with the trend of development in the 

vicinity of the site, generally compatible with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served 

by municipal facilities should off-site easements be obtained.  Based upon this analysis (performed 

without the benefit of evidence and testimony of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of 

this application. 

 

Page 39Item # 7.



BILL NO. 20-21 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-21 Page 1 of 3                           ORDINANCE NO. 20-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING AMENDING THE ZONING CODE AND OFFICIAL MAP BY CHANGING 

THE CLASSIFICATION OF APPROXIMATELY 23.5 ACRES, LOCATED AT THE 7500 
BLOCK OF WEST FARM ROAD 174, FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG) TO HIGH DENSITY 

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R1-H)

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, an application for amendment to the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map 

to rezone real estate located at the 7500 Block of West Farm Road 174 and comprising 
approximately 23.5 acres from Agricultural (AG) to High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-
H), was submitted to the Community Development Department Staff by the Rader Trust 
(hereinafter “Applicant”); and 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Staff did thereafter submit said application to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission which did set May 11, 2020, as the date a public hearing 
would be held on such application and proposed amendment; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the time and date of the public hearing was given by publication on 
April 22, 2020, in The Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, 
such notice being at least 15 days before the date set for the public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the City gave notice of such public hearing to the record owners of all 
properties within the area proposed to be rezoned and within 185 feet of the property proposed 
to be rezoned; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
May 11, 2020, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact on the proposed 
amendment and rezoning and, thereafter, submitted the same, together with its 
recommendations, to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission by a vote of 5 Ayes to 0 Nays, 
recommended the approval of such application for rezoning; and 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning and to amend the Zoning Code and Official 

Zoning Map was submitted to the City Council at its regular meeting on May 19, 2020, after which 
the City Council did proceed to vote to rezone such property and amend the Zoning Code 
accordingly. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
Section 1. That the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended insofar 

as the same relates to a certain tract of realty located at the 7500 Block of West 
Farm Road 174 and comprising approximately 23.5 acres from Agricultural 

Page 40Item # 7.



BILL NO. 20-21 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-21 Page 2 of 3                           ORDINANCE NO. 20-

(AG) to High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H), such tract being 
more fully described as follows: 

BEGINNING AT AN EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENT (5/8" IRON 
REBAR WITH ALUMINUM CAPPED "LS 2334") MARKING THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 28, RANGE 23, 
GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI; 
 THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 
15, TOWNSHIP 28, RANGE 23, S88°14'24"E, A DISTANCE OF 140.45 FEET 
TO A SURVEY MONUMENT SET (5/8" IRON REBAR CAPPED "LS-267D"); 
THENCE S01°45'36"W, A DISTANCE OF 39.35 FEET TO A SURVEY 
MONUMENT SET (5/8" IRON REBAR CAPPED "LS-267D") AT A POINT 
BEING 40.00 FEET SOUTH OF THE CENTERLINE OF FARM ROAD 174 AS 
IT NOW EXISTS; 
THENCE S46°56'41"W, A DISTANCE OF 57.01 FEET TO A SURVEY 
MONUMENT SET (5/8" IRON REBAR CAPPED "LS-267D"); 
THENCE S02°23'43"W, A DISTANCE OF 1252.76 FEET TO A SURVEY 
MONUMENT SET (5/8" IRON REBAR CAPPED "LS-267D") ON THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER; 
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, N88°11'36"W, A DISTANCE OF 
88.36 FEET TO AN EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENT (5/8" IRON REBAR 
CAPPED "LS 1126") MARKING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE EAST 
HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER 
OF AFORESAID SECTION 16; 
THENCE N88º29'18"W, A DISTANCE OF 672.32 FEET TO AN EXISTING 
SURVEY MONUMENT (5/8" IRON REBAR CAPPED "LS 1126") ON THE 
WEST LINE OF THE EAST HALF OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER; 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID EAST HALF, N01º55'50"E, A 
DISTANCE OF 1331.94 FEET TO AN EXISTING SURVEY MONUMENT 
(RAILROAD SPIKE) ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER SECTION 16; 
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, S88º30'22"E, A DISTANCE OF 
670.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 1,022,819 SQ. 
FT. (23.5 ACRES). 
 
BEARINGS LISTED ARE BASED ON MISSOURI STATE PLANE, 
CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83 (2011). 
  
SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS OF RECORD, EXCEPT ANY PART 
THEREOF TAKEN OR USED FOR ROAD OR HIGHWAY PURPOSES. 
 

Section 2. In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, 
the Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and 
continue in full force and effect. 
 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. Page 41Item # 7.



BILL NO. 20-21 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-21 Page 3 of 3                           ORDINANCE NO. 20-

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this _____________________ day of ______________________ 2020. 
 

 
 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor
Attest: 
 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  

Page 42Item # 7.



Page 43Item # 7.



Page 44Item # 7.



Page 45Item # 7.



Section 405.100. "R1-H" High Density Single-Family
Residential District. [CC 1999 §26-18]

A. Purposes. The intent of the "R1-H" High Density Single-Family
Residential District is designed for seven thousand (7,000) square
foot single-family detached residential uses at higher densities of
approximately six (6) dwelling units per acre. Internal stability,
harmony, attractiveness, order and efficiency are encouraged by
providing for adequate light, air and open space for dwellings and
related facilities and by consideration of the proper functional
relationship and arrangement of the different uses permitted in
this district. This district is intended for areas that have access
for vehicular traffic from collector or higher classification streets
without crossing minor streets in adjoining neighborhoods.

B. Uses Permitted.

1. Model homes in accordance with Section 410.190.

2. Single-family dwellings.

3. Accessory buildings customary, incidental and subordinate to
the main building.

4. Churches or other places of worship, including parish houses
and Sunday Schools, but excluding overnight shelters and
temporary outdoor revivals, on a minimum of two (2) acres of
land, to provide sufficient land area for off-street parking,
bufferyards and proper site design to lessen impact on
adjoining residential neighborhoods. The requirements of
Article VI and X regarding parking, loading, landscaping, and
open space shall be required.

5. Home occupations in accordance with Section 405.630.

6. Public school, elementary and high, and educational
institutions having a curriculum the same as ordinarily given
in public schools, on a minimum of two (2) acres of land, to
provide sufficient land area for off-street parking, bufferyards
and proper site design to lessen impact on adjoining
residential neighborhoods. The requirements of Article VI
and X regarding parking, loading, landscaping, and open
space shall be required.

7. Golf courses and country clubs.

8. Any use conforming at the time the district is mapped.

:1
Page 46Item # 7.



9. Group homes. The exterior appearance of the home and
property shall be in reasonable conformance with the general
neighborhood standards. No group home shall be located
within two thousand five hundred (2,500) feet of another
group home.

C. General Regulations. Property and buildings in the "R1-H"
District shall be subject to the following regulations:

1. Street frontage. Each lot shall have a clear, direct frontage on
a dedicated City street.

2. Platting requirements. Each dwelling shall be located on its
own individual platted lot. If areas for common use of
occupants of the development are shown on the plat,
satisfactory arrangements shall be made for the maintenance
of the common open space and facilities, whether in the form
of a neighborhood association or public dedication. The plat
shall indicate the easements and covenants appurtenant
thereto.

3. Off-street parking. As required by Article VI of this Chapter.

4. Accessory buildings and structures. As required by Section
405.640 of this Chapter.

5. Trees. There shall be a requirement of at least one (1) tree for
each platted lot in order to enhance private space. The tree
shall be of a variety that provides shade and screening and
shall be at least six (6) feet in height at the time of planting.

D. Height And Area Regulations. The height and area regulations
shall be provided in accordance with the requirements set forth in
Article V.

Section
405.100

Section
405.100

:2
Page 47Item # 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-22 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Vacating a Water Line Easement on Lot 1 of the Old Stone 
PDD. 

Submitted By: Community Development Department 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

Lester E. Cox Medical Centers (Cox Health) has applied for an Easement Vacation of the Water Line 
located on Lot 1, Old Stone Planned Development District (PDD), the future site of a Cox Clinic.  The 
proposal also dedicates a new 15’ Water Line Easement to accommodate the proposed building 
footprint. 
 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Lester E. Cox Medical Centers (Cox Health) is requesting an Easement Vacation of the Water Line located 
on Lot 1, Old Stone PDD to accommodate the proposed building footprint; the proposed Replat 
dedicates a new 15’ Water Line Easement on the Cox property.   
 
The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 
relationship to adopted plans of the City: 
 
Transportation:  The proposal is not anticipated to have any impact on the City’s transportation system. 
 
Land Use:  The proposal vacates the existing water line and dedicates the Water Line Easement in the 
revised location.   
 
Municipal Utilities:  The proposed revised location of the Water Line Easement aligns with the Water 

Line Easement located on the adjacent property (60 West). 

Floodplain:  The proposal is not anticipated to have any impact on areas of Floodplain. 
 
Other Public Services:  The proposal is not anticipated to have any impact on any other public services. 

Recommended Action 

The Community Development Department recommends approval of the requested Water Line 

Easement Vacation and the dedication of the new Water Line Easement. 

 

Page 48Item # 8.



BILL NO. 20-22 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20- Page 1 of 2                           ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
VACATING A WATER LINE EASEMENT ON LOT 1 OF THE OLD STONE PDD 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has applied for a water line vacation on Lot 1 

of the Old Stone PDD; and 
 
WHEREAS, the water line easement has been deemed no longer needed by the City 

through the Director of Public Works; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owners of the property subject the above water line easement are in 

agreement to vacate it; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Development Staff did, thereafter, submit said application 

to the Planning and Zoning Commission which did set May 11, 2020, as the date a Public Hearing 
would be held on such application and proposed vacation of the above water line easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, notice of the time and date of Public Hearing was given by publication on 
April 22, 2020, in The Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City 
of Republic, such notice being at least 15 days before the date set for the Public Hearing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City gave notice of such Public Hearing to the record owners of all 

properties within the area of the proposed vacation of the water line easement and within 185 
feet of the property proposed to be vacated; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
May 11, 2020, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact on the proposed 
vacation of the above water line easement and thereafter, submitted the same, together with its 
recommendations, to the City Council; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, by a vote of 5 ayes to 0 nays, did 

recommend approving such application for the water line easement vacation; and  
 

WHEREAS, the matter of the vacation of the water line easement was presented to the 
City Council for action and vote on May 19, 2020, for the first reading and on June 2, 2020, for a 
second reading at which time the City Council assessed and determined that no damages would 
be sustained by the owner of any property which fronts or abuts said waterline easement and 
that said waterline easement should be vacated. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
Section 1. The water line easement hereinabove described and further described in 

“Attachment 1” attached and incorporated herein, is hereby vacated, and the 
same shall revert to the owners of the adjacent lots in the same proportion as 
it was originally taken. 

Page 49Item # 8.



BILL NO. 20-22 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20- Page 2 of 2                           ORDINANCE NO. 20- 

Section 2. The Council hereby determines that the owners who own all of the property 
which fronts or abuts the waterline easement being vacated will benefit from 
the vacation of such easement and, therefore, the owners will sustain zero 
damages as a result of said vacation. 

 
Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to record a certified copy of this Ordinance 

with the Recorder of Deeds for Greene County, Missouri. 
 
Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 5. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provision hereof 

is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this _____________________ day of ______________________ 2020. 
 

 
 
           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  
 

Page 50Item # 8.



Page 51Item # 8.



Page 52Item # 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-23 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Authorizing the City Administrator to Enter into an 
Infrastructure Development Agreement with Turner Residential 
Holding, LLC for Infrastructure for Phase 1 of the A’vila Residential 
Subdivision. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, P.E., Community Development Department Director 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Turner Residential Holding, LLC, wishes to enter into a Developer’s Agreement for the deferred 

construction of a 10” water main and the construction of Talavera Avenue during construction of the 

infrastructure associated with Phase 1 of A’Vila. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The approved Preliminary Plat for A’Vila requires the extension of a 10” water main parallel to West 

Farm Road 170 and the construction of Talavera Avenue; the Developer is requesting deferment of both 

infrastructure improvements proportional to the number of lots in Phase 1 of the development .   

The A’Vila Subdivision consists of 139 residential lots; Phase 1 consists of 27 lots, equaling 19.4% of the 

total development.  The estimated cost of construction of the water main extension is $87,000.00; the 

estimated cost of construction of Talavera Avenue is $602,062.23.   

The Developers Agreement financially secures 19.4% of the costs of construction of the water main 

extension and Talavera Avenue, $16,878.00 and $116,800.70 respectively for a period of four years.  The 

developer must construct the required improvements or enter into a new Developers Agreement with 

the City prior to the issuance of any additional permits for subsequent phases of the development. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the Developers Agreement. 

Page 53Item # 9.



BILL NO. 20-23 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-23 Page 1 of 2                           ORDINANCE NO. 20-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN INFRASTRUCTURE

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH TURNER RESIDENTIAL HOLDING, LLC FOR 
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR PHASE 1 OF THE A’VILA RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, Turner Residential Holding, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner and developer 

of the land for the A’Vila residential subdivision located in the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Developer is in the process of developing the A’Vila residential subdivision 

for residential properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the preliminary plat for A’Vila requires that certain improvements be made; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer wishes to defer certain improvements during Phase 1 of A’Vila 

by executing an Infrastructure Development Agreement (“Agreement”) with the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement will allow Developer to defer the improvements, as outlined 

in the Agreement, shown on the preliminary plat during Phase 1 by providing the City with the 
proportional share of the cost for the improvements through a letter of credit or other surety all 
as outlined in the Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds this Agreement is in the best interest of the City as it will 

benefit the community through continued economic growth and development. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:  
  
Section 1. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City of Republic, is 

authorized to enter into an Infrastructure Development Agreement with 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC, said Agreement to be in substantially the 
same form as “Attachment 1.” 
 

Section 2. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provision hereof 
is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 
 

 
 

Page 54Item # 9.



BILL NO. 20-23 ORDINANCE NO. 20-

BILL NO. 20-23 Page 2 of 2                           ORDINANCE NO. 20-

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this _____________________ day of ______________________ 2020. 
 

 
           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ____________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  
 

Page 55Item # 9.



Page 1 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 
this _____ day of ________________, 2020, by and between the City of Republic Missouri 
(“City”) and Turner Residential Holding, LLC, (“Developer”).  Collectively, City and Turner are 
referred to as the “Parties” in this Agreement. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 
Missouri, and 

WHEREAS, Developer is a Missouri Limited Liability Company, and 

WHEREAS, Developer is currently the owner of real property in the City of Republic 
commonly located at the at 7012 West Farm Road 170 and comprising approximately 48.5 acres, 
legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference into this Agreement, 
(“Property), and is in the process of developing a residential subdivision on the Property, and 

WHEREAS, in Ordinance 18-31, passed by Council on June 26, 2018, Developer’s Property 
was rezoned from Agricultural (AG) to High Density Single Family Residential (R1-H); and 

WHEREAS, in Resolution 19-R-10, passed by Council on April 16, 2019, Developer’s 
Preliminary Plat for the Property known as the A’Vila Residential Subdivision (A’Vila)1 
consisting of approximately 139 lots was approved; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has indicated its desire to phase the development of A’Vila by 
submitting Phase 1 of A’Vila to the City which consists of approximately 27 lots, described in 
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated by reference into this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, as indicated by the Preliminary Plat for A’Vila, and required under City 
Ordinances and the Transportation Plan, certain improvements must be completed upon the 
Property; and 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested the City defer the required infrastructure construction 
by Developer of Talavera Avenue and a 10” water main extension along the northern property line 
adjacent to West Farm Road 170 from the western to the eastern boundary of the Property during 
Phase 1 of A’Vila, described in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement (“Deferred Infrastructure”); and 

 
1 The Developer has indicated its intention to rename the subdivision from A’Vila to Oak Hills.  For continuity with 
prior Ordinances and Resolutions, this Agreement will continue to use the name A’Vila for the subdivision. 

Page 56Item # 9.



Page 2 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to allow Developer to defer the above-mentioned Talavera 
Avenue and 10” water line infrastructure construction during Phase 1 of Avila subject to the terms 
contained in this Agreement and approval by Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, 
the City and Developer agree as follows: 

1. Ability to Contract: Developer warranties that it has the ownership interest in the Property 
required to enter into this Agreement and fulfill the terms contained herein. 

2. Infrastructure: 
a. Developer agrees all required infrastructure for the Property as required under City 

Ordinances, Rules and Regulations, the Transportation Plan, and shown the 
Preliminary Plat must be completed before any final plat is issued by the City unless 
modified by this Agreement or any subsequent Agreement. 

b. City agrees to defer, during Phase 1 only of A’Vila, the requirement for Developer 
to construct the infrastructure of Talavera Avenue and a 10” water main extension 
along the northern property line adjacent to West Farm Road 170 from the western 
to the eastern boundary of the Property, described in Exhibit C subject to the terms 
of this Agreement. 

c. Developer agrees this deferral of infrastructure in Paragraph 2(b) is only a deferral 
and not a waiver of the construction during Phase 1 subject to this Agreement.  All 
required infrastructure of A’Vila still must be completed by Developer for A’Vila. 

d. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the City to construct or 
pay for any of the Delayed Infrastructure or any infrastructure on the Property. 

e. With the understanding between the Parties the infrastructure in Paragraph 2(b) is 
just a deferral of Developer’s requirement to construct the Delayed Infrastructure 
during Phase 1 of A’Vila, the Parties agree the proportional share of the cost of the 
Deferred Infrastructure in Paragraph 2(b) shall be determined and as follows: 

i. The A’Vila subdivision, as shown on the Preliminary Plat, will consist of 
139 lots.  Phase 1 of A’Vila, as shown in Exhibit B, will consist of 27 lots.  
Therefore, the proportional share of lots in Phase 1 will be 19.4% of the 
total lots of A’Vila as contained in the Preliminary Plat. 

ii. Based upon data currently available and the estimated cost to construct the 
improvements at the time this Agreement is executed for the construction 
of Talavera Avenue adjacent to the east property line, running from northern 
to southern property lines is $602,062.23.  Therefore, 19.4% of this deferred 
infrastructure would be $116,800.70.  

iii. Based upon data currently available and the estimated cost to construct the 
improvements at the time this Agreement is executed for the construction 
of the 10” water main extension along northern property line/adjacent to 
West Farm Road 170 ROW, from western to eastern boundary of Property 

Page 57Item # 9.



Page 3 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

is $87,000.00.  Therefore, 19.4% of this deferred infrastructure would be 
$16,878.00. 

iv. The Parties agree the above costs are just estimated to determine the 
proportional cost of the improvements under this Agreement and do not 
bind either Party to those costs for the final construction of the Deferred 
Infrastructure in Paragraph 2(b) or any future agreements. 

f. Developer agrees to secure through a letter of credit or other acceptable security 
(“Surety”) as approved by the City and as payable to the City, the proportional 
amounts of the Deferred Infrastructure contained in Paragraph 2(d), that being 
$116,800.70 for Talavera Avenue and $16,878.00 for the water main extension to 
be held by the City as security for the construction of these Delayed Improvements 
before any permits are issued for A’Vila. 

g. The Surety shall be valid for a minimum period of four years with an additional 
redemption period of six months for the City to initiate, if necessary, the collection 
on the Surety. 

h. Once the Deferred Infrastructure secured by this Agreement are completed in their 
entirety as determined by the City, not just the proportional share, and accepted by 
the City after inspection, the Surety shall be returned to Developer. 

i. Should Developer fail to complete all the Deferred Infrastructure secured by this 
Agreement, not just the proportional share, within four years after the date of 
execution of this Agreement, the City shall have, at its sole decision the option to 
either: 

i. Pursuant to an amended agreement, extend the Surety on a year-by-year 
basis to allow for the completion of the Deferred Infrastructure subject to 
this Agreement; or 

ii. Return the Surety to the Developer.  At no time will the City return the 
Surety to anyone other than the Developer; or 

iii. Collect the full amount of the Surety for use by the City.  Should the City 
elect to collect the full amount the Surety, the City shall be allowed to utilize 
the funds from the Surety to either complete the Deferred Infrastructure on 
the Property or use the funds for other infrastructure improvements in the 
City or a combination thereof as determined by the City. 

3. Easements: Developer agrees to execute any easements and/or rights-of-way reasonably 
required by City in order to perform the work contemplated by this Agreement and in order 
for City to provide future maintenance on said work on the Property after the work is 
completed.  Said easements will be provided by Developer to City at no cost and shall be 
made before the City commences work under this Agreement.  City and Developer agree 
that City may need further easements and/or rights-of-way that allow for the extension of 
the Public Improvements contained in this Agreement.  City and Developer agree to 

Page 58Item # 9.



Page 4 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

negotiate in good faith to allow City to acquire further easements from Developer to extend 
the Public Improvements to adjoining properties in the future. 

4. Conflict of Interest: No salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City 
Council, shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement.  A violation 
of this provision renders this Agreement void.  Any federal regulations and applicable 
provisions in Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated. 

5. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements.  This Agreement 
may not be modified or amended other than in writing as agreed to by the Parties. 

6. Default by Developer and Termination: If through any cause, the Developer shall fail to 
fulfill in timely and proper manner Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, become 
insolvent, or if Developer shall violate any of the covenants, agreements or stipulations of 
this Agreement, the City shall deliver written notice of the same to Developer and if such 
failure or violation is not cured within ten days thereafter (or such longer period of time as 
is reasonably necessary so long as Developer begins to cure such failure or violation within 
such ten-day period and thereafter diligently pursues the same to completion), the City 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least five days prior 
written notice of such termination, specifying the effective date thereof. If City elects to 
terminate under this provision, the City shall have to collect on the Surety as contained in 
Paragraph 2(i) even if the four-years have not occurred as contained in the Paragraph. 

7. Default by City and Termination: If through any cause the City shall fail to fulfill in timely 
and proper manner City’s obligations under this Agreement, become insolvent, or if City 
shall violate any of the covenants, agreements or stipulations of this Agreement, the 
Developer shall deliver written notice of the same to City and if such failure or violation is 
not cured within ten days thereafter (or such longer period of time as is reasonably 
necessary so long as City begins to cure such failure or violation within such ten-day period 
and thereafter diligently pursues the same to completion), the Developer shall thereupon 
have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving at least five days prior written notice 
of such termination, specifying the effective date thereof. If Developer elects to terminate 
under this provision, Developer shall be responsible to City for all of actual costs in the 
completion of the Delayed Improvements.  Termination of this Agreement shall be the sole 
remedy for any default by City under this Agreement. 

8. Jurisdiction and Venue: This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the Parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri 
for all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from 
it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 

9. Dispute: In the event that the City is the prevailing Party in any litigation arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement, the City shall be entitled to all reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
expenses incurred. 

Page 59Item # 9.



Page 5 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

10. Liability: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on behalf of 
the City for any direct, special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages.  Developer 
agrees that the type of work to be performed under this Agreement will cause damage to 
Developer’s Property and Developer agrees that the City shall not be liable for any 
damages caused to the Property outside of that necessary to complete the Infrastructure 
contemplated by this Agreement. 

11. Independent Contractor: The Parties to this Agreement are separate and independent from 
each other.  This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint venture or 
partnership between the Parties. 

12. Execution: The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and 
emailed shall have the legal effect of original signatures  In addition to facsimile or scanned 
and emailed signatures, this Agreement may be executed by the Parties in accordance with 
the applicable version of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the 
Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act (“ESIGN”).  The Parties 
hereto agree to conduct transactions by electronic means and hereby affirmatively consent 
to use electronic records to memorialize and execute this agreement and any alterations 
thereto. At the request of either Party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original 
counterparts of this Agreement or any amendment. 

13. Survival: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as 
provided in this Agreement.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that the rights and benefits 
afforded Developer under this Agreement shall run with the Property and shall be 
enforceable by and for the benefit of any and all successor owners of the Property without 
further consideration to or consent by the City. The Parties acknowledge and agree that at 
the request of either Party, a memorandum of this Agreement shall be duly executed by the 
Parties and recorded in the real estate records of Greene County, Missouri; provided, 
however, this Agreement shall be binding and enforceable as between the City and any 
current or future owner of the Property without recording thereof.  

14. Headings: The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall 
not limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

15. Whereas Clauses: The “Whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

16. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any Party without the prior written 
consent of the other Parties. 

17. Sovereign Immunity: In no event shall any language or requirement in this Agreement be 
construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City’s defenses with regard to sovereign 
immunity, governmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state 
constitutions, statutes, and/or laws. 

Page 60Item # 9.



Page 6 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

18. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this 
Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement.   

19. Funds Deposit: Developer agrees that any funds remitted to City under this Agreement may 
be comingled by the City with other funds deposited by the City from other sources.  
Further, any funds remitted by the District will gain no interest and the City shall determine 
where said funds are to be deposited. 

20. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: This Agreement is contingent upon the City having 
sufficient funds available for the subject of this Agreement.  Developer shall have no right 
of action against City in the event City is unable to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement as a result of insufficient funds.  Further, this Agreement is subject to and 
conditioned upon approval by ordinance by the City Council. 

21. Contract Documents:  The Agreement shall consist of the following: 
a. This Agreement;  
b. Exhibit A – Legal description; 
c. Exhibit B – A’Vila Phase 1; 
d. Exhibit C – Delayed infrastructure secured. 

22. Notices: Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following 
offices or deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or Certified, with postage thereon 
prepaid as follows: 
 

to the City:   City of Republic, Missouri     
    Attn: City Administrator     
    213 North Main Street     
    Republic, Missouri 65738 

 
to Developer:   Turner Residential Holding, LLC 

ATTN: Shawn Turner 
   328 South Ave 
   Springfield, MO 65806 

  [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61Item # 9.



Page 7 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the day and year first above written. 

DEVELOPER/OWNER 

Turner Residential Holding, LLC  

__________________________  
(Signature) 
 
__________________________  
(Printed Name) 

__________________________  
(Title) 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
               )ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________  ) 

 On this _____ day of ______________, 20___, before me personally appeared 
_____________________ (name), to me personally known, who being duly sworn, did say that 
he/she is the _________________ (title) of Turner Residential Holding, LLC, and that the said 
instrument was signed on behalf of said corporation by authority of its board of directors, and 
_____________________ (name) acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of 
said corporation, and that said corporation has no corporate seal. 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, 
at my office in __________________________________, the day and year first above written. 

 
      __________________________________ 
      Notary Public 

       
             
      Print Name 

 

My Commission expires:  ____________________ 

 

(Notary Seal) 

Page 62Item # 9.



Page 8 of 8 
Turner Residential Holding, LLC – Infrastructure Developer Agreement 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC     

 

_________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator      

 

_________________________________ 
Attest: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk      

 

Approved as to Form:    

  

______________________________ 
Scott Ison, City Attorney 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 

Page 63Item # 9.



Exhibit A 

SOURCE OF DESCRIPTION:  BOOK 2004 AT PAGE 057458-04. AND BOOK 2010 AT 
PAGE 044604-10 

TRACT A: 

THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OR TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (NE1/4) IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, IN 
GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AS AN EXISTING IRON PIN AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE1/4) OF SAID NE1/4; THENCE N88’20’02”W, ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID NE1/4 OF THE NE1/4,  A DISTANCE OF 160.00 FEET TO AN 
IRON PIN SET AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT 2 AS DESCRIBED IN BOOK 
2004 AT PAGE 057458-04 IN THE GREENE COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE;  THENCE 
N88’20’02”W, CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 920.55 FEET 
TO AN IRON PIN SET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE S01’54’17”W, A 
DISTANCE OF 1331.90 FEET TO AN IRON PIN SET ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
NE1/4 OF THE NE1/4; THENCE N88’18’57”W, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE 
OF 254.05 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4) OF SAID NE1/4;  THENCE N88’09’36”W, ALONG THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4, A DISTANCE OF 1334.60 FEET TO AN 
EXISTING IRON PIN AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4, 
SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 17 IN OLDE TOWN AT 
THE KERR PLACE, A RECORDED SUBDIVISION IN GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI;  
THENCE N01’52’42”E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4, ALSO 
BEING THE EAST LINE OF SAID OLDE TOWN AT THE KERR PLACE, A DISTANCE OF 
1327.77 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
OLDE TOWN AT THE KERR PLACE;  THENCE S88’20’02”E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE 
OF SAID NW1/4 OF THE NE1/4 AND THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NE1/4 OF THE NE1/4, 
A DISTANCE OF 1589.28 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  SAID TRACT 
CONTAINS 48.5195 ACRES (MORE OR LESS) AND IS SUBJECT TO ANY EASEMENTS, 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

Page 64Item # 9.



Exhibit B

Page 65Item # 9.



Exhibit C

Page 66Item # 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-10 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving the Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of a 
Nonprofit Corporation for Ozarks Transportation Organization. 

Submitted By: David Cameron, City Administrator 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

This amendment would allow all members of the Ozarks Transportation Organization to receive assets in 

proportion to the amount of dues paid in the event of dissolution of the organization. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The current Articles of Incorporation were written in 2008 at a time when the City of Springfield was the 

only member of the organization.  As written, if the organization were to dissolve, the City of Springfield 

would receive all assets of the Ozarks Transportation Organization.  The Ozarks Transportation 

Organization’s attorney discovered this discrepancy while reviewing the Bylaws and this amendment is 

not an indication of any anticipated dissolution of the Organization. 

The Board of Directors approved this amendment at their last meeting and a resolution from each 

member is necessary to file with the amended Articles of Incorporation to the Missouri Secretary of 

State. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of 20-R-10. 

Page 67Item # 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-10

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-10 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF THE 
OZARKS TRANSPORTATION ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Ozarks Transportation Organization (“OTO”), a Missouri nonprofit 
corporation, is the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the region of southwest Missouri that 
includes the City, as mandated by the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1962, as amended, the Urban 
Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, the Airport and Airway Development Act of 1970 
and other subsequent laws setting forth requirements for transportation planning for all modes 
of travel; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is a member of the OTO; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation of the OTO were dated and filed with the 
Missouri Secretary of State on April 23, 2008, (“Articles”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Articles were filed at a time at which the City of Springfield was the only 
member of the OTO, and its Articles provided that, upon the Organization’s dissolution, all of its 
assets would be distributed to the City of Springfield; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the OTO has notified the City that it 
deems it advisable that ARTICLE VII of the Articles be amended in such a manner that upon the 
OTO’s dissolution, its assets would be distributed among all of its dues-paying members, in 
proportion to the amount of dues paid in its most recent fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the applicable provisions under RSMo 355.561 of the Nonprofit 
Corporation Law of the State of Missouri, the Articles may be amended by the authorization of 
the OTO’s Board and the majority vote of its members; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds the proposed amendment necessary and in the best interest 
of the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City does hereby vote in favor that the amendment to ARTICLE VII of the 
Articles be amended in such a manner that upon the OTO’s dissolution, its 
assets would be distributed among all of its dues-paying members, in 
proportion to the amount of dues paid in its most recent fiscal year. 

 
Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 Page 68Item # 10.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-10

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-10 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 
 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020.
 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor
Attest: 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  

Page 69Item # 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-11 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving a Preliminary Plat for Olde Savannah, a 
Residential Subdivision Consisting of Approximately 24.48 Acres 
Located at the 6300 Block of South Farm Road 89. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Community Development Department 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

Steven McElhaney and Olde Savannah LLC have requested review and approval of a Preliminary Plat of 

approximately (24.48) acres, Olde Savannah, consisting of (81) residential lots, zoned High Density 

Single- Family Residential (R1-H), streets, and infrastructure.   

Conformity with Preliminary Plat Review Criteria:  Preliminary Plats are reviewed for their conformance 

with the following review criteria to ensure the development, in the proposed location: 

(1) Will not endanger the public health or safety; 

(2) Will not injure the value of adjoining property or abutting property; 

(3) Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Transportation Plan, Zoning Code, 

Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Facility Plan, or other plans officially 

adopted by the City Council; and  

(4) Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located 

Preliminary Plats are reviewed by the City Planner and the City Engineer in conformance with the 

requirements of Chapter 410 of Republic’s Municipal Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and all applicable 

City adopted codes and regulations.   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Preliminary Plat Application is comprised of approximately (24.48) acres of 

land located at the 6300 Block of South Farm Road 89.  The property is zoned High Density Single-Family 

Residential (R1-H), the property contains no structures and is used for agricultural purposes only. 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of the application’s conformity with the Preliminary Plat 

Review Criteria identified above.   

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The referenced Preliminary Plat contains (81) High Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) lots with a 

minimum lot size of (7,000) and consists of streets, open space, and detention area.  The Preliminary 

Plat of Olde Savannah contains lots with an average size of (8,890) square feet.  

Page 70Item # 11.



 

Transportation Plan 

The Preliminary Plat proposes (1) new Local Street connection to South Farm Road 89, connection to 

New Madrid Street in The Lakes at Shuyler Ridge Subdivision, and (4) new connections to undeveloped 

properties to the north and south.  The new public streets, internal to the subdivision, will include 

approximately (4,917) feet of street and sidewalk, which will be dedicated to the City during the Final 

Platting Process; deficient Right-of-Way (ROW) along South Farm Road 89 will be dedicated to the City 

during the Final Platting Process.   

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was completed by the Applicant and reviewed by the City during Rezoning; 

the report indicated no major improvements were needed to the City’s existing transportation system to 

accommodate the increase in traffic generated by the proposed development. 

Water and Wastewater Master Plan 

The referenced parcel is not currently connected to municipal utilities, development of the property will 

require connection to the City’s water and sanitary sewer systems.  The development will be served 

through a looped water main system with connections to an eight (8) inch water main located at the 

termination of New Madrid Street in The Lakes at Shuyler Ridge Subdivision and to a ten (10) inch water 

main located near the intersection of Hickory Street and South Farm Road 89.  The development will 

connect to an existing eighteen (18) inch sewer main located on East New Madrid Street.  The sanitary 

sewer system flows to the Shuyler Creek Lift Station before travelling through a force main to the 

Wastewater Treatment Facility.  The water and sewer system currently have the capacity to serve the 

potential development. 

Zoning Code 

The Preliminary Plat of Olde Savannah has been platted for the construction of (81) single-family 

residential lots and associated infrastructure, including public streets and sidewalks, public water and 

sanitary sewer mains, and stormwater detention.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

Stormwater:  The Preliminary Plat contains a Stormwater Detention Area in the mid-eastern and 

northern portions of the property, designed to control the release of stormwater attributable 

from the development.    The Plat contains a conceptual layout of the Detention Area; the area 

will be designed to mitigate existing conditions to reduce the amount of post-development 

flows to less than pre-development flows.  The Stormwater Detention Area’s outflow will flow 

onto adjacent property to the north; a Stormwater Report will be reviewed by the TRT during 

Infrastructure Design review.  The Stormwater Detention Area and all open space/common area 

will be maintained by a Homeowner’s Association.   

Infrastructure Design:  The design of the streets, sidewalks, water and sanitary sewer systems, 

and stormwater detention will be reviewed and permitted during the Infrastructure Permitting 

Process. 

Recommended Action 

Page 71Item # 11.



 

Staff considers the proposed Preliminary Plat in general conformity with the requirements for 

Preliminary Plats and is recommending approval of the application.   

 

Page 72Item # 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-11

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-11 Page 1 of 2                            

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING A PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR OLDE SAVANNAH, A RESIDENTIAL 

SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 24.48 ACRES LOCATED AT THE 
6300 BLOCK OF SOUTH FARM ROAD 89

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council have adopted 

Subdivision Regulations governing the subdivision of land within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council have passed a 
Resolution adopting a Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council have passed a 
Resolution adopting a Transportation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat for the Olde Savannah residential subdivision consisting 
of approximately 24.48 acres and located at the 6300 Block of South Farm Road 89 meets the 
requirements of the Ordinances of the City of Republic, the Subdivision Regulations, and 
conforms to the Land Use Plan and the Transportation Plan of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission by a vote of 5 Ayes to 0 Nays 
recommended the approval of the aforementioned Preliminary Plat to the City Council at its 
regular meeting on May 11, 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:  

  
Section 1. The Preliminary Plat for the Olde Savannah subdivision, attached hereto as 

Exhibit A, shall serve as the guide to the development of the subdivision.   
 

Section 2. The Preliminary Plat substantially conforms with Chapter 410 of the City of 
Republic’s Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval as provided by law.    
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020. 
 
 

            
      Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

 
 Page 73Item # 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-11

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-11 Page 2 of 2                            

Attest: 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: _______________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  
 
Final Passage and Vote: ____________________________________________________________  

 
 

Page 74Item # 11.



Page 75Item # 11.



Page 76Item # 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-12 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving the Water and Wastewater Master Plans. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, Community Development Department Director 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

The staff and consulting engineer Burns and McDonnell have completed the final drafts of the Water 

and Wastewater Master Plans for council consideration and CIP planning. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Water and Wastewater Master Plans address the 5- and 20-year planning periods for both utilities.  

Data for both utilities was collected over the last 1-2 years to accurately model and project growth 

demand and the corresponding capital improvements.   

Specifically, for the Wastewater Master Plan, a plan to achieve compliance with MDNR is laid out that 

will fulfill the obligations of the Administrative Order that will likely be in affect by late 2020.  This 

Administrative Order will require compliance with the NPDES permit within a very specific timeline. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 

Page 77Item # 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-12

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-12 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

APPROVING THE WATER AND WASTEWATER MASTER PLANS

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City’s existing master plan for the water and waste water system was 
developed in 1998; and 

 
 WHEREAS, in Resolution 18-R-11, the City retained the services of Burns & McDonnell 
for the development of the water and waste water master plans (“New Master Plans:); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the New Master Plans address the 5 and 20-year planning periods for the 
City’s water and waste water system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council deems it necessary to approve the New Master Plans for the 
future use, vision, goals, and overall development of the City’s water and waste water systems. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The water and wastewater master plans, attached hereto as “Attachment 1” 
and incorporated herein, are approved by the City. 

 
Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 
 
Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020. 
 

           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  

Page 78Item # 12.



+ 

 

  

CITY OF REPUBLIC 

Water & Wastewater 

Master Plan 
Executive Summary 

Andrew Nelson, P.E. 
Community Development Director 

Abstract 
The following Executive summary provides a high-level overview of the master planning efforts 

for the water and wastewater utility.  Including the needed capital improvements to facilitate 
growth and maintain compliance. 

Page 79Item # 12.



 

 

 

 

 

 

Greetings, 

I am pleased to present this executive summary for your consideration.  The following document 

represents 1 ½ years of data collection and planning efforts by City Staff and our consulting engineer 

Burns & McDonnell.  This planning effort provides the staff and the citizens of Republic a clear and 

precise approach to building and maintaining utilities that are compliant and facilitate the growth of the 

City. 

The Republic Water system is overall in good condition.  While we do have areas that suffer from 

restricted fire flows and aging infrastructure, the service itself is still compliant and acceptable.  We are 

positioned well to take a proactive rather than reactive approach and make the necessary investments 

to replace these pieces of the system before they disrupt service to our customers.  From a perspective 

the City’s projected growth shows that additional wells will be necessary in the 20-year planning period, 

however this does not adversely affect our aquifer and the underground supply shows to be adequate 

to facilitate our growth.  There are also some options to participate in a regional effort to obtain water 

supply from Stockton lake if it proves to be economical. 

The Republic Wastewater system is in a little bit tougher position.  Although we have expired large debt 

services from the original plant expansion 20 years ago, aging infrastructure and deferred maintenance 

have created a backlog of capital projects.  Along with that, the City entered into a voluntary compliance 

agreement with Missouri Department of Natural resources that expires in 2021.  This agreement was a 

voluntary effort to achieve system compliance, due to overflow discharges at the wastewater treatment 

plant from excess stormwater.  With no major progress made to eliminate the bypass of the treatment 

process, the City will now be entering into and Administrative Order with MDNR that will dictate a strict 

timeline to regain compliance.  This Order will require major capital investment to achieve compliance 

and will have strict penalties associated if this goal is not met.  The good news is that our completed 

master plans are the first major step in this process and position the City well to meet the requirements 

of the Administrative order within the deadline. 

The effort and investment into these master plans create a well-defined path for the City to provide the 

most efficient, compliant and cost-effective network of utilities for the citizens of Republic.  Execution 

and implementation of these planning efforts will also prepare the City exciting new growth and 

development opportunities.  The best is yet to come! 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Andrew D. Nelson, PE 
Community Development Director 
City of Republic 

Page 80Item # 12.



1 

 

Table of Contents 

Water Master Plan .............................................................................. 2 
1.1 Water Distribution System .........................................................................................................................2 

1.2 Population and Water Demand Projections ................................................................................................2 

1.3 Water Supply Planning ...............................................................................................................................3 

1.4 Short-Term Supply Planning ......................................................................................................................3 

1.5 Long-Term Supply Planning ......................................................................................................................4 

1.6 Water Master Planning ...............................................................................................................................4 

1.7 Hydraulic Model Development ..................................................................................................................4 

1.8 Hydraulic Model Development ..................................................................................................................6 

1.9 Year 2023 System Analysis ........................................................................................................................7 

1.10 Year 2038 System Analysis ........................................................................................................................7 

1.11 Capital Improvements Plan ........................................................................................................................8 

1.12 Water Master Plan Conclusion .................................................................................................................10 

Wastewater Collections .................................................................... 11 
2.1 Introduction ..............................................................................................................................................11 

2.2 Existing Conditions Analysis ...................................................................................................................11 

2.3 I&I Reduction Strategy .............................................................................................................................11 

2.4 Population Growth ....................................................................................................................................12 

2.5 Capital Improvement Plan ........................................................................................................................12 

Wastewater Treatment Plant ............................................................. 15 
3.1 Scope of Assessment ................................................................................................................................15 

3.2 Service Area Description ..........................................................................................................................15 

3.3 Capital Improvements ..............................................................................................................................16 

3.3.1 Headworks ............................................................................................................................................16 

3.3.2 Secondary Treatment ............................................................................................................................17 

3.3.3 Tertiary Treatment (Filtration) .............................................................................................................17 

3.3.4 Disinfection ..........................................................................................................................................17 

3.3.5 Solids Handling ....................................................................................................................................18 

3.3.6 Administrative Building .......................................................................................................................18 

3.3.7 Probable Cost ........................................................................................................................................19 

 

  

Page 81Item # 12.



 

2 

 

Republic Master Plan 

Executive Summaries 
 

Water Master Plan 
 

1.1 Water Distribution System 

The City’s water distribution system consists of four wells, three elevated storage tanks, one ground storage tank 

and associated pump station that supply water to the water main network. The four supply wells (Well 3, Well 4, 

Well 5, and Well 6) pump water from the Ozark Aquifer into the distribution system. Well 5 pumps to a ground 

storage tank and is pumped into the distribution system with a separate pump station. There are three elevated 

storage tanks and one ground storage tank with a total volume of 2.1 MG. The water distribution, as modelled, totals 

approximately 120 miles of pipe ranging in diameter from 4-inches to 12-inches. 

 

1.2 Population and Water Demand Projections 

City staff provided population projections for years 2020, 2030, and 2040. The 5-year and 20-year population 

projections are interpolated for year 2023 and year 2038 and apply a water usage of 91 gpcd and 96 gpcd 

respectively for the demand projections. The escalation in water usage from 2023 to 2038 is a conservative approach 

to account for an aggressive population growth which is expected to double in the next 20 years. Customer classes 

include residential, commercial, city use, and industrial (representative of manufacturing and warehouse facilities). 

From 2015 to 2018 the residential and commercial classes represented approximately 70 percent and 20 percent, 

respectively, of the total customer sales, therefore a population-based water demand projection is applied in the 

master plan. The mix of customers during this period is also representative of the previous 15 years and water usage, 

in terms of gallons per-capita-day (gpcd), has been consistent ranging between 88 gpcd and 94 gpcd since 2007. 

The City also anticipates the addition of a large water user in the amount of 1.0 MGD occurring after 2023. A 

summary of the population and water demand projections (maximum day demand) is listed below: 

• Year 2019: 14,958 people at 3.02 MGD. 

• Year 2023: 22,110 people at 3.62 MGD; and 

• Year 2038: 35,358 people at 7.11 MGD. 

Page 82Item # 12.



 

3 

 

1.3 Water Supply Planning 

Source water planning to meet short and long-term water demand projections using the firm capacity design concept 

is recommended and calculates the City’s water supply assuming the highest producing well is out of service. This 

approach provides additional supply resiliency for the City and help deliver water during periods of high demand, 

even if one well is out of service for cleaning or repairs. MDNR design guidelines for source water planning with 

groundwater systems requires the following for water supply capacity planning: 

 

• Criteria 1: the total developed groundwater source capacity shall equal or exceed the design maximum day demand; 

and 

• Criteria 2: all public water systems shall be capable of meeting design average day demand with the largest 

producing well out of service. 

 

1.4 Short-Term Supply Planning 

Based on the water demand projections through 2023, the capacity of the City’s existing water supply sources 

complies with the firm capacity concept and MDNR guidelines. As indicated previously, the City is planning for a 

new large water user needing approximately 1.0 MGD occurring in or after 2024, which will fall out of compliance 

with the firm capacity concept. Therefore, a new well should be implemented as average and maximum day 

demands approach 3.1 MGD and 4.9 MGD, respectively. Similarly, as average and maximum day demands 

approach 4.4 MGD and 7.1 MGD respectively another well should be added. The short-term supply planning using 

the firm capacity concept is summarized in Table 1-1 below: 

 

Page 83Item # 12.



 

4 

 

 

1.5 Long-Term Supply Planning 

A total of six new supply wells are required to meet the long-term water demand projections for the 50- year 

planning horizon. This equates to adding a well every 8-9 years. Wells should be added in areas where growth is 

occurring to support the hydraulic gradients in the distribution system and elevated storage. Location and quantity 

should also consider connectivity to portions of the distribution system that have limited highway or railroad 

crossings to increase water supply redundancy in these areas. Use of water from a project that ultimately results 

from the Tri-State Water planning effort is an alternative to address the City’s long-term supply deficits; however, 

significant uncertainties remain about that exact nature of that project which could shift it from a viable alternative 

to not recommended. Those uncertainties impact the business case for evaluating how the City can best meet long-

term water demands. Given the uncertainties in the Tri-State Water project and available information as of the date 

of this report, the 50-year water supply plan includes options to develop wells or introduce surface water from the 

Tri-State Water project as a new supply source. 

 

1.6 Water Master Planning 

The City identified growth areas for the 5-year and 20-year planning periods and are illustrated in Figure 1-1. 

Distributions for the population projections are allocated by development area and planning period based on input 

from City staff. The projected water demands for these growth areas are based on anticipated customer and land 

use classifications and are evaluated with the model to identify capital improvements required to convey these 

demands to customers in the existing and future water service area. 

 

1.7 Hydraulic Model Development 

Field testing was conducted from June 27, 2018 through July 29, 2018 and included fire hydrant testing with 

pressure monitoring, via data loggers, in the distribution system. Data loggers are positioned on fire hydrants located 

at or near water mains ranging between 4-inch and 12-inches in diameter. Other data included in the model 

calibration effort includes SCADA historian information from the City’s water system facilities and are listed 

below: 

• Flow and discharge pressure at wells 3, 4, 5, and 6. 

• Elevated storage level at Tanks 3, 4, and 6; and 

• Flow, discharge pressure, and ground storage tank level at the Well 5/pump station facility. 

 
A total of 28 fire hydrant tests were conducted throughout the distribution system on 4-inch, 6-inch and 8- inch 

water mains. Fire hydrant testing creates hydraulic stress in the distribution system and the results are used to 

calibrate the model to accurately simulate static conditions. Model calibration is performed by adjusting the Hazen-

Williams coefficient, or C-value, assigned to pipes to simulate the test results, data logger pressure information, 

well performance, and tank levels. The calibrated model adequately represents the fire hydrant test results and 

pressure at each of the data logger locations.

Page 84Item # 12.



 

5 

 
1.5 Existing System Analysis 

Page 85Item # 12.



 

6 

 

1.8 Hydraulic Model Development 

The hydraulic analysis for the existing system is based on a maximum day demand of 3.02 MGD, a peak hour 

demand of 5.78 MGD, a minimum hour demand of 1.66 MGD, and a fire service under maximum day demands. 

The average pressure in the system under maximum day demands is approximately 68 psi, with approximately 83 

percent of the system ranging between 50 psi and 80 psi. The model results identified no high velocity and/or high 

head loss watermains under these demand conditions. Frisco square experience pressure between 35 psi and 40 psi 

under peak hour demands and is attributed to the elevation in this area, which is the highest in the distribution 

system. 

 

The model results indicate all wells and the pump station at the Well 5/ground storage tank facility are adequately 

sized to convey maximum day demands and fill elevated storage during low demand periods. The desktop, or 

quantitative, storage analysis indicates a storage surplus of approximately 0.93 MG; therefore, no storage 

improvements are recommended. Elevated storage is adequately located, with respect to water main capacity, to 

deliver peaking demands and maintain adequate pressure throughout the distribution system, which is greater than 

40 psi, with exception to a couple of dead ends in the Frisco Square area. 

 

The hydraulic model evaluates available fire flow under the maximum day demand condition. The City’s fire flow 

requirement for sizing distribution system water mains is 1,500 gpm at a 20-psi residual. Most of the low fire flow 

areas, less than 1,500 gpm, are dead-end 4-inch and 6-inch diameter pipes with available fire flow between 800 

gpm and 1,500 gpm that may not warrant a fire flow improvement, at least initially, if there are no active service 

connections. Remaining areas with low available fire flow are evaluated in the Year 2023 model simulation for the 

projected demand and include fire-flow driven improvements. 

 

The average water age in the distribution system under average day and maximum day demands are 54 hours and 

35 hours, respectively. The water age of the existing distribution system is considered good, or low, for this type of 

groundwater supply-distribution system, customer makeup, water demands, and water main sizing. Tank 6 

operating levels exhibit minimal turnover. This is primarily due to the Well 6 pump controls that operate based on 

tank level and low water demands within the tank’s area of influence. The pump cycling can be lengthened with 

modifications to the control system at Well 6 to promulgate more turnover within the tank; this will also lessen the 

mechanical taxing on the pump. SCADA historian tank level trending during field testing indicated between 3 and 

4 well pump starts per day based on a turnover of approximately 3 ft in the tank bowl with a head range of 37.5 ft. 

Model results indicate a tank turnover between 7 ft and 9 ft can still provide adequate pressure service within its 

area of influence. From a water quality perspective, a general guideline is to turnover between 25 percent and 33 

percent of the tanks volume daily. 

Page 86Item # 12.



 

7  

1.9 Year 2023 System Analysis 

The hydraulic analysis for the year 2023 planning period is based on a maximum day demand of 3.62 MGD, a peak 

hour demand of 6.90 MGD, a minimum hour demand of 1.99 MGD, and fire service under maximum day demands. 

The average pressure in the distribution system under maximum day demands is approximately 69 psi, with 

approximately 75 percent of the system ranging between 50 psi and 80 psi. 

The storage analysis indicates a storage surplus of approximately 0.93 MG; therefore, no storage improvements are 

recommended. 

 

Capital improvements for fire flow service total approximately 17 miles of water main and development driven 

improvements total approximately 42 miles of water main to support anticipated growth within the existing 

distribution system and peripheral growth that will expand the water service area. Development driven 

improvements that provide looping on the periphery of the existing distribution system also help meet the fire flow 

requirement, without them, available fire flow will decrease depending on the location and demand conditions and 

may not comply with the City’s fire service requirement of 1,500 gpm at a 

20-psi residual. 

 
1.10 Year 2038 System Analysis 

The hydraulic analysis for the year 2038 planning period is based on a maximum day dem4and of 7.11 MGD, a 

peak hour demand of 12.7 MGD, a minimum hour demand of 4.4 MGD, and fire service under maximum day 

demands. The average pressure in the distribution system under maximum day demands is approximately 67 psi, 

with approximately 77 percent of the system ranging between 50 psi and 80 psi. 

The storage analysis indicates a storage surplus of approximately 0.4 MG; therefore, no storage improvements are 

recommended. 

 

The water main improvements for fire flow service identified in the year 2023 planning period are adequately sized 

for the 2038 planning period, therefore, no additional capital improvements are required for compliance with the 

City’s fire flow requirement. There are approximately 17 miles of water main improvements needed for future 

development to expand the service area. 

Page 87Item # 12.



 

8  

1.11 Capital Improvements Plan 

Opinions of probable cost in todays’ dollars for capital improvements based on the water demands evaluated in the 

model are listed below. The small mains replacement cost opinion is a catch-all for any remaining water mains less 

than or equal to 4-inches not associated with a fire service trigger. Please note that cost opinions can increase for 

individual linear improvements, or portions thereof in terms of length, if rock excavation is required which can be 

highly variable based on the sporadic nature of karst formations within the water service area. The opinion of 

probable cost for each CIP is summarized below: 

 

• Year 2023 Planning Period subtotal at $31.9 million: 

o New water mains for fire service at $1.0 million. 

o New water mains for fire service to replace existing small mains at $4.8 million. 

o Development driven improvements at $22.5 million; and 

o Development driven improvements that also increase distribution system redundancy/connectivity 

at $3.5 million. 

• Year 2038 Planning Period subtotal at $9.7 million: 

o Development driven improvements at $7.6 million; and 

o Water supply improvements at $2.2 million. 

▪ This includes two production wells and associated pump, motor, well house, electrical, 

mechanical needs for well house, SCADA/controls, and permitting, engineering, and 

construction. 

▪ The first production well is contingent based on the demand projections and a new large user(s) 

requiring 1.0 MGD of water service beginning in or after year 2024. 

▪ The second production well should be implemented as maximum day demands approach 7.11 

MGD and includes the large user(s) water demand indicated above. 

• Small mains replacement at $11.0 million. 

• Total opinion of probable cost at $52.5 million. 

  

Page 88Item # 12.



 

9  

 
Page 89Item # 12.



 

10  

1.12 Water Master Plan Conclusion 

In conclusion, the existing water system is robust in terms of storage, distribution connectivity, and is appropriately 

sized for current and projected water demands through the end of the 2038 planning period; hence there are no high-

priority hydraulic improvements required in the short-term other than the addition of a new well which is 

recommended to maintain a level of water supply redundancy. Additional water supply capacity is also conditional 

based on the addition of a new large user occurring in or after 2024, but the impetus for implementing the first new 

well should be triggered by water demand, not necessarily the improvement period which can accelerate or delay 

its implementation schedule. This places the City in a repair/replacement mode of operation for known problematic 

areas (i.e. aging infrastructure, frequent water main break areas, etc.), fire service improvements as funding is 

available, and development-driven improvements when needed. 

 

Nonrevenue water, by definition in this report (difference between meter production and billed consumption) is 

moderately high for a system of this size and customer base which is primarily residential and commercial and any 

efforts to lower this amount can potentially impact the scheduling of water supply improvements and even impact 

fire flow improvement needs and sizing. Nonrevenue water varied widely since 2013, ranging from 13 percent to 

23 percent during a period of marginal variance in average and maximum day demands. An AWWA M36 top-down 

water audit is recommended as a starting point to better manage, quantify, and identify nonrevenue water and 

potential sources of real losses and apparent losses. 

 

Real losses are physical water losses (i.e. water main breaks, background leakage, flushing activity, etc.) in the 

distribution system that are pumped and treated, but never reach customer service taps, and are valued at the variable 

production cost (electricity and disinfectant). Apparent losses represent “paper losses” attributed to unauthorized 

consumption, meter inaccuracies, systematic data handling errors in the billing system transcription of customer 

meter readings, etc. and are valued at the customer retail unit cost. All distribution systems have varying degrees of 

real and apparent losses; with respect to Republic and the presence of karst in the region, real water losses have 

more potential to influence the overall water loss standing of the utility because water main breaks and/or leakage 

may never surface, hence it never gets reported or estimated because this type of topography is known for its 

sinkholes and caves. Water auditing with the M36 reporting sheets should be conducted annually and integrated as 

a business practice; the reporting worksheets are made available to all water industry providers at no cost from 

AWWA and can be downloaded from their website. 

  

Page 90Item # 12.



 

11  

Wastewater Collections 
 

2.1 Introduction 

The City of Republic, Missouri (City) retained Burns & McDonnell (BMcD) to develop a sanitary sewer system 

model to complete an existing conditions evaluation and to create a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the 5-year 

(2023) and 20-year (2038) planning periods. This report provides the City with a comprehensive document 

pertaining to an evaluation of the existing system and future conditions assessment. Specifically, this report 

summarizes the following components of the modeling project: 

• Existing Conditions 

• Inflow & Infiltration (I&I) Reduction Strategy 

• Population Growth 

• CIP Projects 

• Opinion of Probable Costs 

 

2.2 Existing Conditions Analysis 

Evaluation of existing conditions included identifying projected sanitary sewer pipes and manholes with a reduced 

level of service during the 5-year, 24-hour design event. The evaluation was performed using the existing conditions 

model. Details related to model development can be found in the Hydraulic Model Calibration & Verification 

technical memorandum dated May 2019. The model showed flow constrictions at several locations throughout the 

model and indicated a restricted level of service in several conduits and manholes. Most of these restrictions were 

located in the FM- 109 meter catchment and along the Shuyler Creek interceptor. 

 

2.3 I&I Reduction Strategy 

To assist in alleviating the restricted levels of service in the existing system, a Goal-Based I&I Reduction strategy 

is proposed. A Goal-Based I&I Reduction strategy will be used to target specific percent reductions at defined points 

within the sanitary sewer system. This type of plan identifies the current level of I&I at a point in the system and 

defines a percent reduction along with a time frame for achievement. Goal-Based I&I Reduction is usually coupled 

with additional CIP projects to look at the sewer system as part of a comprehensive master plan to achieving a 

certain level of sanitary service. This type of I&I reduction program provides measurable goals, which are 

important if I&I reduction is considered in place of or as part of a future capital improvement program. These levels 

are typically defined utilizing hydraulic models, which identify the most efficient means of achieving the desired 

level of service. A Goal-Based I&I Reduction strategy will allow the City to utilize their capital budget on cost 

efficient I&I removal on the basins with the highest priorities. 

  

Page 91Item # 12.



 

12  

2.4 Population Growth 

In addition to an existing conditions analysis, a future conditions model was developed for use in determining CIP 

projects. A large portion of these projects are related to projected population growth in the City. The City provided 

BMcD with growth areas for the 5-year and 20-year planning period, which were allocated throughout the model. 

The updated population projections, along with increased sanitary flows, were used to identify proposed linear, lift 

station, and force main improvements as part of the overall Wastewater Master Plan. 

 

2.5 Capital Improvement Plan 

Proposed planning level sewer improvements were developed as part of the CIP. These improvements addressed 

manholes and conduits that indicated a reduced level of service during the existing conditions analysis. The 

proposed CIP Projects focused on the following measures: 

2.5.1 I&I reduction 

2.5.2 Increased pipe diameters 

2.5.3 Increased pipe slopes 

2.5.4 Lift station improvements 

The proposed improvements were organized into 20 projects for the CIP. These projects were then phased using 

both a 5-year (2023) and 20-year (2038) planning periods. A summary of the projects, phasing, and opinion of 

probable cost can be found in, and an overview of the projects can be found in Figure 0-1. 

 

 

 

  

Page 92Item # 12.



 

13  
 Page 93Item # 12.



 

14  

  

Page 94Item # 12.



 

15  

Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 

3.1 Scope of Assessment 

The City of Republic (the City) retained Burns & McDonnell (BMcD) to conduct an assessment of the existing 

wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) as part of the Wastewater Master Plan, setting forth evaluations and a plan of 

improvements for the facility through the planning year of 2038. Systems evaluated include influent screening, 

influent pumping, stormwater treatment, secondary treatment, clarification, chemical feed, tertiary filtration, 

disinfection, solids handling, and ancillary facilities. The existing WWTP was constructed in 1986 as an extended 

aeration activated sludge process and expanded in 2001. Currently, the WWTP is rated for an average day flow of 

3.2 MGD and a peak flow of 5.1 MGD (at full expansion). Implementation of future processes or process 

modifications to accommodate National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit changes, 

including biological nutrient removal (BNR), were also considered. The drivers for the improvements identified in 

this memorandum are based on anticipated regulations, growth projections, and capacity and performance-related 

issues. 

 

3.2 Service Area Description 

The Republic WWTP treats wastewater generated by residential, commercial, and some industrial customers. 

Growth projections through the 2038 planning period show the City’s service areas expanding both in terms of 

physical area and population density. The WWTP is currently able to treat up to 2.2 million gallons per day (MGD), 

but it will require additional capacity to accommodate the anticipated growth. Refer to the Existing and Future 

Conditions Assessment Memorandum for additional detail on the WWTP service area. 

Page 95Item # 12.



 

16  

3.3 Capital Improvements 

The drivers for the improvements identified for the WWTP are based on regulations (both existing and anticipated), 

growth potential, and performance-related issues of supporting processes. The WWTP has historically been in 

compliance with effluent ammonia limits. However, improvements to increase treatment capacity, provide 

sufficient aeration, and reduce sludge age are necessary to ensure future compliance. Further, regulations for 

biological nutrient removal are being planned for future implementation state-wide by MDNR; thus, provisions for 

future total nitrogen and total phosphorus removal should be considered. The City should contemplate 

improvements to position the Plant for commercial and industrial growth in the service area. Improvements should 

aim to easily accommodate potential suitors by offering flexibility in loading scenarios. 

 

Supporting processes, including the headworks, tertiary filtration, disinfection, and solids handling system, 

necessitate improvements to better control the liquid stream process and operations. A well-operating headworks 

protects downstream mechanical equipment, such as pumps and mixers, and a well-operating solids handling system 

with sufficient capacity is critical for nitrification and maintaining biological stability in the secondary process. 

Further, the hydraulic bottleneck created by the filters and UV disinfection needs to be alleviated to realize 4.1 

MGD treatment capacity. 

 

3.3.1 Headworks 

The existing WWTP has experienced performance-related issues in downstream processes due to inadequate 

influent screening, which threatens pipe clogging, wearing pumps, and binding mixers. A grinder is currently 

installed upstream of the influent screen to reduce the size of larger influent solids. However, the grinder is 

performing poorly and is producing stringy material rather than more homogenously ground material. Also, the 

screening area floods during peak wet weather events due to the insufficient hydraulic capacity of the existing 

screen.  

 

Installation of new influent screening and grit removal is recommended. Interceptor capacity to convey flow to the 

WWTP is approximately 16 MGD. The WWTP, with the improvements recommended by BMcD, has a capacity 

to treat a peak flow of 8.2 MGD through the secondary treatment process. Flow in excess of this would be conveyed 

to the stormwater treatment system. Direct discharges from the stormwater clarifier are no longer permitted and 

must be reported. MDNR has accommodated blending at other municipalities as an alternative for wet weather 

management. Peak flows in a blending scenario typically pass through primary treatment prior to being blended 

with fully treated effluent. Construction of a wet weather transfer pump station is recommended to pump peak flows 

from the stormwater clarifier to filtration for particulate BOD and TSS removal prior to discharge. Blending would 

eliminate future discharges from the stormwater system. 

 

 

Page 96Item # 12.



 

17  

3.3.2 Secondary Treatment 

The performance of the liquid stream process is threatened by insufficient solids handling capacity. Elevated MLSS 

concentrations yield SRTs that threaten the biological health in the aeration basins. The historic operational SRT of 

the aeration process (approximately 25 days) has been in the range where endogenous respiration occurs. During 

endogenous respiration, the microorganisms oxidize their own cellular mass in lieu of an organic source and release 

ammonia in the process. Further, elevated solids concentrations in the secondary process impacts the capacity of 

the system and hinders its ability to react during periods of higher loading. Thus, operating at a long SRT and high 

MLSS concentration threatens permit compliance without improvements to the solids handling and liquid stream 

processes. 

 

A two-phase approach is recommended to improve the liquid stream process: (1) expansion of the selector basin, 

rehabilitation of Aeration Complex No. 2, and construction of a fourth clarifier (2) rehabilitation of Aeration 

Complex No. 1. The phased approach allows the City to gradually implement changes and add additional capacity 

when needed. Improvements made in each phase serve to incrementally improve treatment performance and 

capacity and preclude the need to construct a new treatment plant. 

 

3.3.3 Tertiary Treatment (Filtration) 

The existing traveling bridge sand filters are inefficient and lack the performance of cloth media filtration. 

Replacement of the traveling bridge sand filters with disc filters is recommended to maintain TSS and total 

phosphorus removal.  

 

The existing traveling bridge filters are hydraulically located such that the disc filters could be installed within the 

existing filter channels. Two disc-filters, each rated for 8 MGD, would be installed in the filter channels and would 

receive clarifier effluent and stormwater flow from the proposed transfer pump station. One disc-filter would be 

used during normal operation, and both would be operated during peak conditions. 

 

3.3.4 Disinfection 

The existing UV disinfection system was installed in 2000 and has exceeded its useful design life. Further, the 

process creates a hydraulic bottleneck during wet weather events, as it was designed for a peak flow of 3.7 MGD. 

The original system was designed to achieve an effluent fecal coliform limit of 400 CFU/100 mL at 3.7 MGD, but 

the process has since been de-rated twice due to the more stringent E. coli limits in the facility’s NPDES permit 

(126 colonies/100 mL). Operations staff indicated the maximum flow the UV equipment can treat is 3.0 MGD. 

 

The UV system should be sized to accommodate flows equal to the influent pumping capacity – 16 MGD. The UV 

system would disinfect the 4.1 MGD treated by the plant and the 12 MGD peak wet weather flow pumped via the 

proposed transfer pump station. In order to reduce capital cost and make use of existing infrastructure, the new 

Page 97Item # 12.



 

18  

equipment could be installed in the center channels of the abandoned chlorine contact basin. 

 

Inclined UV systems are relatively new to the market and were created to alleviate issues with the large footprints 

associated with horizontal and vertical configurations for systems exceeding 5 MGD. They were designed to fit 

within the channels of chlorine contact basins, as numerous utilities replaced their chlorine disinfection systems 

with UV technologies. The inclined configuration improves on the potency of UV lamps without sacrificing 

efficiency or lamp size. The inclined configuration eliminates dead space within the channel and provides constant 

contact between the wastewater and UV light, which reduces the overall number of components (lamps, ballasts, 

cabinets, etc.). 

 

3.3.5 Solids Handling 

Sludge hauling frequency is dictated by land availability. When land application is not a viable option, the City 

occasionally hauls sludge to the City of Springfield’s WWTP for further processing and disposal. Digestion capacity 

is insufficient, which often causes operations staff to store solids in the liquid stream process, yielding a long sludge 

age and threatening settleability and nitrification ability. Burns & McDonnell recommends constructing an 

additional aerobic digester and adding solids dewatering to produce a cake prior to land application. 

 

The sludge quantities developed for this evaluation were based on influent BOD, TSS and temperature data provided 

by operations staff. The design wasting rate to maintain an eight to ten-day SRT in the secondary treatment process 

is 140,000 gpd at 0.5% to 1.0% solids, which equates to approximately 10,000 lbs./day. This solids loading will be 

used as the design basis for the solids processing system. 

 

3.3.6 Administrative Building 

The existing Administration Building (Admin Building) lacks adequate space for the operations staff, so the City 

has added a trailer behind the building to supplement the administrative space. Further, the shop within the Admin 

Building is too small to allow operations staff to work on most equipment The City indicated they have plans to 

construct a new shop within the next year; however, additional office space is still needed. A new multi-purpose 

building is proposed to supplement the existing administrative space. The proposed addition would be a metal 

building that includes both administration and dewatering spaces  

 

The dewatering space will include a room to house the screw press or centrifuge and associated chemical feed 

equipment. The room would have an adjacent exterior area with overhead cover for cake storage and loadout. The 

building would also include an electrical room with CMU walls. The administration area would include an office, 

control room, and breakroom. It will also have new restroom, locker, shower and laundry facilities, and storage 

spaces. 

 

 

Page 98Item # 12.



 

19  

3.3.7 Probable Cost 

Based on these improvements, BMcD developed opinions of probable construction costs. The cost opinions show 

the capital required for each project and the opportunity for phasing. Cost opinions are based on preliminary 

manufacturer data and raw water quality. These order-of-magnitude cost opinions are based primarily on our 

experience and judgment as a professional consultant combined with information from past experience, vendors, 

and published sources. Since BMcD has no control over weather, cost, availability of labor, availability of material 

and equipment, labor productivity, construction contractor's procedures and methods, unavoidable delays, 

construction contractor's methods of determining prices, economic conditions, government regulations and laws 

(including the interpretation thereof), competitive bidding or market conditions, and other factors affecting such 

opinions or projections, BMcD does not guarantee the actual rates, costs, etc. will not vary from the opinions and 

projections developed herein. 

A 30-percent contingency allowance is included to cover all types of unaccounted-for project costs resulting from 

conditions, details, or components which are not normally known or determined until final detailed design. Costs 

specifically do not include geotechnical evaluations, deep foundations, surveys, permitting preparation and fees, 

utility services to site, and taxes.  

 

Page 99Item # 12.



 

20  

 

Page 100Item # 12.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-13 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Awarding the Bid for the Phone System. 

Submitted By: Josh Jones, IS Director 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award the bid contract for a cloud hosted VoIP city-wide phone system solution. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic solicited sealed bids for cloud hosted VoIP phone system solutions in order to 

improve city wide telephony quality, reliability, serviceability, mobility, and overall operation for use by 

staff. Eight total bids were received in the form of cloud hosted VoIP phone system contract offerings as 

summarized below. 

 

Solution Monthly Yearly Service One Time 

Cost 

Contract 

Term 

Contract Total 

All Covered  $   3,349.94   $      40,199.28   $                -    3  $    120,597.84  

Jive  $   2,342.04   $      28,104.48   3  $      84,313.44  

Mitel  $   2,061.00   $      24,732.00   $          12.00  3  $      74,196.00  

Momentum  $   2,488.00   $      29,856.00   3  $      89,568.00  

Rayfield 

Communications 

 $   1,758.08   $      21,096.96   $   18,152.62  N/A N/A 

STL 

Communications 

 $   3,879.75   $      46,557.00   5  $    232,785.00  

Vertical  $   1,961.65   $      23,539.80   3  $      70,619.40  

Verizon  $   2,725.00   $      32,700.00   $   10,732.00  N/A N/A 

Page 101Item # 13.



 

 

The City currently utilizes an on-premise 3COM PBX VOIP phone system installed around 2005. The 

average phone system hardware life expectancy is 7 to 10 years.  Since the selection and install of the 

system in place, the proprietor of the technology sold to another company and the technology itself has 

been discontinued and without support service available. Operating with the system’s original 

hardware, staff experience regular service interruption and hardware difficulties. Furthermore, 

replacement of compatible hardware is only available in refurbished form from mostly irreputable third 

party sources.   

 

Entering into an agreement with a cloud hosted VoIP phone system vendor will result in vast 

improvement among many technology related city processes, first and foremost in a network data 

transfer capability, increasing our current network speed limitation from 100 mbps to 1000 mbps 

speeds. In addition, this agreement will include all new system hardware, mobile application, vendor 

support for hardware, system maintenance, and upgrades, phone system training and user technical 

support, service level agreement for system availability assurance, SIP phone line hosting and 

management, and significant cost savings with the removal of currently used AT&T landlines.  

 

Recommended Action 

IT staff participated in product demonstration of the most competitive solutions. Review of these 

solutions included careful consideration of cost, contract structure, service, support, quality, alignment 

with industry trends, long term challenges and goals, and overall user-friendly operation for 

improvement of staff’s technical environment. As a result, the staff recommends approval of this 

Resolution awarding the bid to Mitel in the contract total amount of $74,196.00 over 3 years ($2,061.00 

monthly) with a one-time upfront cost of $12.00. Mitel’s bid offers a quality and reputable solution with 

all-inclusive hardware, management, and support that will empower staff, advancing collaboration and 

departmental processes to new heights.  

 

Page 102Item # 13.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-13
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AWARDING THE BID FOR THE PHONE SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited sealed bids for a new phone system; and 

WHEREAS, eight vendors provided duly submitted bids and the recommended bidder is 
Mitel Networks Corp., all bids being on file with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, although Mitel Networks Corp. was not the lowest bidder for the base bid, 
due to the requirements of the City in a phone system, Mitel Networks Corp. is the most 
responsible bidder; and 

WHEREAS, although Council desires to accept the lowest bid, the requirements of the 
City for a phone system make the most responsible bid to govern the phone system purchase the 
bid from Mitel Networks Corp. for the City’s needs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The submitted base bid from Mitel Networks Corp., attached hereto as 
“Attachment 1” and incorporated herein, is accepted at the unit prices shown 
thereon and not to exceed $74,196.00 over three years. 

Section 2. The City Administrator, or designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 
the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020. 

Jeff Ussery, Mayor 
Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-13 

Page 103Item # 13.



REPUBLIC
MISSOL]I{I

(;R()\!tNC l()LtlHtl

City of Republic - tnvitation for Bid
Cloud Hosted VOIP Telephone System

SEALED BIDS MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED AT REPUBLIC cIry HALL PRIOR To 3:oo P.M. oN May 8th,2o2o.*+*Please see bid submission comments below on accommodations made related to current covlDlg social
distancing policy ***

City of Republic
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main
Republic MO 55738

o Bids will be opened by the buyer at the location listed above.

' Bids shall be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized to
lega lly bind the company.

o Bids shall be submitted with the lnvitation for Bid (lFB) project name or item clearly indicated on the
outside of the mailing envelope.

. Bids received after the opening date and time will be rejected.

' The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of any purchase order resulting from this bid.
. FAXED/EMAILED BIDS WtLL NOT BE ACCEpTED.

' You are invited to submit your bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein. please submit
your prices/fees net of all discounts.

+**City Hall will be open at the time of bid opening- We will limit physical attendance to 1O or less in order
to follow current social distancing recommendations. Bids can be dropped off or mailed to 213 N. Main,
Republic, MO 65738 and will be received until May 86, at 3:00 p.m. lf City Hall is closed at the time of
submission, bids may be dropped off in the drop box outside City Hall or sent by mail. please note that mail
is received every 3 days while City Hall is closed, so please ensure adequate time for receipt of any mailed
bids. lf the bid package is too large for the drop box, bidders may call City Hall in advance to arrange for a
contactless drop off by calling 417 -732-3140.

Page 104Item # 13.



DESCRIPTION

Cloud Hosted VOIP Telephone System
Please see the Bid Specifications and Description of Work (Attachment A - Bid Submission Form) attached to this

document for details on the existing and desired phone system solution.

DELIVERY: F.O.B. DESTINATION - The articles to be furnished hereunder shall be dellvered all transportation

charges paid by the bidder to destination.

lnquiries - All inquiries for information should be directed to:

Joshua Jones

lnformation Systems

iciones(arepublicmo.com
4L7 -7 32-3820

It is the intent of the City that this lnvitation for Bid promotes competitive bidding. lt shall be the Vendo/s
responsibility to advise the City if any language, requirements, etc, any combination thereof, inadvertently
restricts or limits the requirements stated in this lnvitation for Bid to a single source, Such notification must be

submifted in writing and must be received by the City contact listed above not latcr than three (3) days prior to
the bid opening date.

Page 105Item # 13.



INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

01. Opening Location: The Bid will be opened at the Republic City Hall 213 N. Main at 3:00 P.M. ON
May 8th, 2020.

a. All bidders or their representatives are invited to attend the opening ofthe lFB.

02. IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered.
It shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder to have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hall for receipt
on or before the due date and time indicated.

a. lf a Bid is sent by U.5. Mail, the bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City
Hall.

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejected.
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the bidder's request and expense.
d. Bids may be malled to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed bid form and required

information was mailed and received prior to the due date and time.
e. Bids sent by email will not be accepted.

Sealed and Marked: lf sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed packaBe, clearly
marked on the outside of the package with the IFB project name.
clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing envelope and addressed to.

City of Republic
C/O City Clerk, Laura Burbridge
213 N. Main
Republic MO 65738

03. Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of
the bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Affidavit of
Compliance page.

b. The signer shall have the authorlty to bind the company to the submitted Bid.
c. Failure to properly siBn the Bid form shall invalidate same, and it shall not be considered for

awa rd.
04. Corrections: No erasures are permitted.

a. lf a correction is necessary, draw a single line through the entered figure and enter the corrected
figure above it.

b. Corrections must be initialed by the person signing the Bid.
05. Clarification and Addenda: Each bidder shall examine all lnvitation for Bid documents and shalljudBe all

matters relating to the adequacy and accuracy of such documents.
a. Any inquirles or suggestions, concerning interpretation, clarification, or additional information

pertaining to the lnvitation for Bid shall be made through the listed City contact in writing or
through email.

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any City employee,
representative, or others.

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or
additional information can be given.

d. lt shall be the responsibility of each bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to contact listed City
contact with questions or inquiries.

06. IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the Clty of Republic to reimburse responding
firms and the City will not reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this request.

07. lrrevocable Offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening ofthe tFB.
Any Bid not so withdrawn shall, upon opening, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period of 90Page 106Item # 13.



days to sell to the City the goods or services set forth in the lFB, until one or more of the Bids have been
duly accepted by the City.

08. Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be responsive, a bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms in all
material respects to the requirements set forth in the lnvitation for Bid. To be a responsible bidder, the
bidder shall have the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity,
perseverance, experience, integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure
good faith performance. The lowest responsible bidder shall mean the bidder who makes the lowest Bid to
sell goods or services of a quality which conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the
specifications or otherwise required by the City and who is known to be fit and capable to perform the Bid
as made.

09. Reserved RiShts: The City reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make
the determination of the bidder's responsiveness and responsibility.

a. Such information may include, but shall not be limited to: current flnancial statement, verification
of availability of equipment and personnel, and past performance records.

10. The Right to Audit: The bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to
support charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent to
the purchase, and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.

a. The cost of any audit will be paid by the City.
b. The City shall have the right to audit the bidder's records pertaining to the work/product for a

period of three (3) years after final payment.
11. Applicable [aw: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City

Procurement ReBulations and Procedures will apply to any resultinB aBreement, contract, or purchase
order.

a. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance with the Procurement
Regulations and Procedures.

12. Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City procurement Regulations.
a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent.
b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or award is contested and shall be

submitted within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have
reasonably been expected to know of the facts giving rise thereto.

13. Ethical Standards: With respecttothis lFB, if any bidder violates or is a party to a violation of thegeneral
ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such bidder may be
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further
disqualified from submitting any future Bids.

14. Collusion: By offering a submission to this lnvitation for Bid, the bidder certifies the bidder has not
divulged, discussed, or compared the Bid with other bidders and has not colluded with any other bidder or
parties to this IFB whatsoever. Also, the bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint Bid, each party thereto
certifies as to their own organization, that in connection with this IFB:

a. Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation,
communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating
to such prices and/or cost data, with any other bidder or with any competitor.

b. Any prices and/or cost data for this Bid have not knowingly been disclosed by the bidder and will
not knowingly be disclosed by the bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to
any other bidder or to any competitor.

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person or firm to
submit or not to submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and
that no person other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the contract to be
entered into.

e. No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee

Page 107Item # 13.



exempting bona fide empl
for the purpose of doing b

oyees or established commercial agencies maintained by the purchaser
usiness.

15' contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall
be on forms either supplied by or approved by the City.

16. tiability and tndemnity:
a. ln no event shall the city be liable to the contractor for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of this contract. The maximum
liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or received by the City
under this contract.

b. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed
officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, costs
(including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from claims in any manner caused by, or
allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or connected with, this contract, or the work or any
subcontract thereunder (the Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with
subcontractors), including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property
damage, or for damages from the award of this contract to Contractor.

c. The contractor shall indemnify and hold the city harmless from all wages or overtime
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this agreement or any
subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim
made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal
or state law.

17. IFB Forms, Variances, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on attached City IFB forms, although
additional information may be attached.

a. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City requested specifications and/or terms and
conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance.

b. Otherwise, bidders must fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and
conditions. Alternate Bids may or may not be considered at the sole discretion of the City
Purchasing Agent.

1.8. Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.
a. The bidder must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the

project.
b. Bidders shall insert the words "no bid" in the space provided for an item for which no Bid is made.
c. The bidder shall submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance with other requested

documents.
1.9. Modifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification for a Bid already received will be considered only if

the modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids.
a. All modifications shall be made in writing, executed, and submitted on the same form and manner

as the original Bid.

b. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email will not be considered.
20. No Bid: lf not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "statement of No Bid" no later than the stated

8id opening time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.
21. Errors in Bids: Bidders or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform themselves as to

the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the
bidder's own risk. Neither law nor regulations make allowance for errors either of omission or
commission on the part of bidders. ln case of error of extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall
govern.

22. Prices: Bid give both unit price and extended total.
a. Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the bidding specifications. tn case of

discrepa n rn com utin8 the a mount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will overn.
Page 108Item # 13.



AI p ces sha be F o B dest nat on fre ht d hep epa u n ess ot se s ated n spe C a
co n d it ons FoB a s used n th s FB 5ha me a n ha t Se t theer a r n expense sha t a nspo rtthe equ pment a nd/o ma te r a s a nd bea f the f tsk of loss fro s tio fim e e rs oCA n to a spec ed
ocat on n the c ty of Rep U b tc Mo 6 7 8 Buye r sha not ta k t t to the tee e ma r a s o r

eq U pme nt u nt t s de red a nd a ccepted by Buye r at th dd ifi d wit h hee a ress spe c e n t c ty of
Re pU b c

c Each item must be bid separately and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with
any other item or items.

d lf a bidder offers a discount on payment terms, the discount time will be computed from the date
of satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of correct invoice at the office specified.e. Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otherwise specified.

f. Pre-payment terms are not acceptable.
23 Discounts: Any and all discounts except cash discounts for prompt payments must be incorporated as a

reduction in the Bid price and not shown separately.
a. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in determining award(s).

24. Descriptive lnformation: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered
by this IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the purpose intended.

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by other than the manufacturer specified when

an "or equal" is stated.
25. Deviations to Specifications and Requirements: When bidding on an ,,or equal,,, Bids must be

accompanied with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the proposed material or
equipment such as the detailed drawings and speclfications, certified operation and test data, and
experience records.

a. Failure of any bidder to furnish the data necessary to determine whether the product is
equivalent, may be cause for rejection of the specific item(s) to which it pertains.

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the bidder on the Affldavit of
Compliance form, at the time of submittal of Bid.

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submittal of the Bid will hold the bidder strictly
accountable to the specifications as written.

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for
rejection of the material and/or equipment when delivered.

26. Samples (if required): (NOr APPLTCABLE)

27. Quality Guaranty: lf any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or if the product will
not produce the effect that the bidder represents to the City, the bidder shall pick up the product from the
City at no expense. Also, the bidder shall refund to the City any money which has been paid for same.

a. The bidder will be responsible for attorney fees in the event the bidder defaults and court action is
required.

28. Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflects
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.

29. Tax-Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax lD Number
!2492990.

30. Awards:
a. Unless otherwise stated in the lnvitation for Bid, cash discounts for prompt payment of invoices

will not be considered in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to
motivate prompt payment.

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group of
items, all or none or a combination thereof; to reject any and all Bids or waive any minor
irregula ri or technicality in Bids received.

b.

Page 109Item # 13.



c. Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other
requirements of the lnvitation for Bid and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price,

delivery, responsibility of the bidder, and all other relevant factors.
31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful bidde(s) by virtue of submitting the name and

specifications of a manufacture/s product will be required to furnish the named manufacture/s product.
a. By virtue of submission of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the bidder(s)

is legally authorized to submit and the successful bidder(s) will be legally bound to perform
according to the documents.

32. Regulations: lt shall be the responsibility ofeach bidder to assure compliance with OSHA, EPA, Federal,
State of Missouri, and City rules, regulations, or other requirements, as each may apply.
a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS: All Contractors/Contractors for contracts exceeding five
thousand dollars shall by sworn affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and
participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in
connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall also sign an affidavit affirming
that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the
contracted services-

b. Proposers are informed the Project is subject to the requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which
requires all contractors or subcontractors doing work on the Project to provide and require its on-site
employees to complete a ten (lo)hour course in construction safety and health approved by the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri
Department of Labor and lndustrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program.
The training must be completed within sixty (50) days of the date work on the Project commences. on-site
employees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall have twenty (20)
days to produce such documentation.
c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo. The Contractor shall forfeit to the City as a penalty two thousand
flve hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-site employee employed
by the Contractor or its Subcontractor, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, Such on-site employee is
employed without the construction safety training required in the above paragraph.
d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracts awarded under this bid.

33. Termination of Award: Any failure of the bidder to satisfy the requlrements of the City shall be reason for
termination of the award.

a. Any Bid may be rejected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.
34. Royalties and Patents: The successful bidde(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or

processes !n conjunction with the equipment being furnished.
a. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City

harmless from loss on account or cost and attorney's fees incurred.
35. Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City of Republic, In accordance with the provision of Title Vl

of the civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252) and the Regulations of the Department of commerce (15 cFR,
Part 8) issued pursuant to such Act, hereby notifies all bidders that affirmatively ensure that in any
contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement that minority businesses will be afforded full
opportunity to submit Bids in response to this advertisement and will not be discriminated against on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for award.

36. Prevailing Wages: lf the public works construction project is valued at more than 575,000, the successful
bidder shall comply with applicable State provisions concerning the payment of prevailing wages on public
works projects. Accordingly, all workers performing work under the City Contractor Agreement shall be
paid not less than the prevailing hourly rate of wages as determined by the Department of Labor and
lndustrial Relations of the State of Missouri (or "MoDOLtR").

37. lnsurance Requirements: Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the Contractor, the
Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, throughout the duration of this Contract
and until the work is completed and accepted by the City, insurance of such types and in such amounts as
ma be necessa ry to protect it and the interests of the City against all hazards or risks of loss as hereunder

Page 110Item # 13.



specified o r wh ich ma a nse o U t of th e perfo rm a n ce of th e C tract Doo n cu me n ts Th e fo rm a nd m ts of
s uch nsu ra nce togethe r ith th e u nd e rite r the reof n ea ch case b ct to bya re sU Je a p p rova the c ity t
a proof of o rke rs Compe nsat ton Lia b ty a nd Automobi e L b itv sh ba nsu ra n ce a e
presented be the respo ns bi ity of the co ntracto r t ta d teo ma n n a eq U a
n SU ra nce covera8e at a d U n ng the e rm of the F th Co nta U re e ra cto r to m a nta n

coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual responsibility or obligation or liability under the contract
Documents. The limits of liability insurance shall be as established annually and published by the Secretary
of State in the Missouri Registry. For this project, the required insurance amounts shall be: Workers,
compensation - statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq; Employer,s Liability - s1,ooo,ooo.0o;
Commercial General Liability lnsurance - 52,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence and 5420,605 for any one person in a single accident or occurrence; Automobile Liability
lnsurance - covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, with
limits of 52,804,046 for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and 5420,606 for any one
person in a single accident or occurrence.

38. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials payment Bond: (Not Applicable).
39. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life ofthis contract:

a. lf the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact business in the State of
Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 351.570 RSMo.
b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient employer
financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230 RSMo.

40. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the bid tabulation of the tnvitation for Bid.
41. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item

from the Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty based
upon availability of funds.

42. Additional Purchases by Other Public Agencies: The bidder by submitting a Bid authorizes other public
agencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in this lnvitation for Bid
unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form.

43. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, which
varies from the Instruction to bidders, shall take precedence.

44. Affidavit for Service Contracts: The Bidder represents, in accordance with RSMO 285.530.2 that they have
not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the scope of work to be
done under the IFB and a8rees to provide an affidavit to the City of Republic affirming that they have not,
and will not in connection with the lFB, knowingly employ, or subcontract with, any person who is an
unauthorized alien.

45. Business License - lt will be the requirement of the contractor to acquire a City of Republic business
license before they may begin work on the project.

46. lnspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to this contract shall be deemed
accepted until the City has had reasonable opportunity to inspect the item(s).

a. Anyitem(s) whichare discovered to be defective orwhich do not conform to any warranty of the
Seller upon inspection may be returned at the seller's expense for full credit or replacement.

b. lf at a later time, the defects were not ascertainable upon the initial inspection may also be
returned at the seller's expense for full credit or replacement.

c. The City's return of defective items shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or contractual
remedies the City may have.

47. Davis-Bacon Act: lf the lnstructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed in whole or in
part from Federal funds, then this contract shall be subject to all applicable federal statutes, rules and
regulations, including provisions ofthe Davis-Bacon Act,40 U.S.C.53141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor
Standards Provisions," incorporated into this Contract. Where the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law and the
Davis-Bacon Act require payment of different wages for work performed under this Contract, the
Contractor and all Subcontractors shall a the reater of the wages required under either law.

minimum,
Regardless of such approval, it shall

times Contract. of

Page 111Item # 13.



48. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any Agreement required under it, shall be taken and deemed to have
been fully executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for
all purposes and intents. Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall be in the
Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A JURY TRTAL

UNDER ANY APPLICABTE STATUTE, COMMON LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE CONSTITUTION.
49. Conflict of lnterest: ln participating in this IFB and accepting an Agreement, Contractor certifies that no

salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or Mayor, has a financial
interest, direct or indlrect, in this Agreement. Any federal regulations and applicable provisions in
Section 105.450 et seq., RSMo. shall not be violated.

50. Sovereign lmmunity: ln no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that
comes from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard to
sovereign immunity, Sovernmental immunity, or official immunity under federal or state constitutions,
states, and/or laws.

51. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this bid. lt
further has the right to negotiate with any qualified source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this bid.
The City also reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all aspects
of this bud process, to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive any defects
as to form or content of the bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit the City to
award a contract, to defray any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to
procure or contract for services. All submissions become the property of the City as public record. All
submissions may be subject to public review upon request.

Page 112Item # 13.



B!D SPECIFICATIONS

The City ofRepublic is requesting proposals for cloud hosted VOIP telephone system solutions. The solution is
to replace an existing on-premise antiquated PBX VOIP phone systern. It is our intent to select a solution
offered by a partner that includes migration and implonentation services ofthe product included in the contract.

Scope of Services (Requirements)

A minimum number of requirements need met for a satisfactory cloud hosted VOIP solution for the city. Below
are services in features that will be included with the award solutions contmct.

Existing Environment

The City of Republic facilities include 9 buildings, 8 of which are connected to one another via fiber MPLS
network. This network is serviced by a 100 mbps dedicated connection from Liberty Connect Utilities. The city
currently utilizes an on-premise 3COM NBX Technologies VOIP phone system, with IP pass through phones at
each end-user's desktop. All city switching equipment includes PoE function and 10/100 mbps data transfer
capabilities. All virtualization will be built for this network.

Evaluation Criteria

The following iterns will be used to evaluate submitted proposals and the success ofa solution for the City.

Demonstrated expertise in proposal
Professionalism in proposal and product feature set
Cost competitive contract
Implementation ease

Integration capabilities with existing software

- Cloud hosted VOIP solution
- lmplementation and migration services
- 241'1 service and hardware support throughout contract
- Provide initial and continued training during contract
- Provide cost management recommendations for solution components
- IP phones with 1 gbps ethemet ports
- Mobility features such as an associate mobile app
- Multiple configurable auto-attendants
- Supports hunt goups, and extemal call transferring

Page 113Item # 13.



Item Description of Work Price

Base Bid

. Planning, migration, and implementation services

. Mobile application integration with system
t 105 phones (seats), l0 with "sidecar" for transferring

and parking additional lines.
. eFax capabilities at 4 locations
. 9 wireless handsets
. 5 configurable Auto Attendants
. 2417 tech support & device hardware replacement

ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMTSSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby incorporated by
reference, the underslgned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

To be submitted with Vendor's Bid

_X_We DO NOT take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.

_We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows:

CIry OF REPUBLIC STATEMENT OF "NO BID" * ADDENDA

Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum

RETURN THrS PAGE ONLY rF YOUR COMPANY PROVTDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVTCES BETNG BrD AND DECLTNES TO DO

so.

Company Name: Mitel

Address: 5360 Legacy Drive #300, Plano, TX,75024

Telephone: 512-255-8860

Facsimile:
Signed
Dated t,^__ oslosl2o2o

E-mail : jim.mcgarry@mitel.com
1)

Cellular:
Printed
Title

Jim McGarry, Regional Vice President

Bidders Federal lD Number: 7 6-O3tLl t3

5 74,7s6
S2,061 Monthlv

City of Republic - Telephone system

312 N Main St., Republic, MO 65738

Page 114Item # 13.



Addendum No. _
Addendum No. _

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB + FOR DESCRIPTION FOR THE FOLLOWING

REASON(S):

Addendum No.

SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHI" I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONIY
(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).

Addendum No. _
Addendum No. _

-INSU 

FFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.

-OUR 

PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PREFORM.

Print Email iim.mcgarry@mitel.com

CITY OF REPUBTIC STATEMENT OF "NO BID"
RETURN THIS PAGE ONLY IF YOUR COMPANY PROVIDES THE PRODUCTS/SERVICES BEING BID AND DECLINES TO DO

so.

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE DECLINED TO BID ON YOUR IFB FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON(S):

- 

SPECIFICATIONS ARE TOO "TIGHT," I.E. GEARED TOWARD ONE BRAND OR MANUFACTURER ONLY

(PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW).

- 

INSUFFICIENT TIME TO RESPOND TO INVITATION FOR BID.

Print Federal Tax lD No._76-0311713

Page 115Item # 13.



REMARKS:

OUR PRODUCT SCHEDULE WOULD NOT PERMIT US TO PERFORM'

UNABLE TO MEET SPECIFICATIONS.

UNABLE TO MEET INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.

SPECIFICATIONS UNCLEAR (PLEASE EXPLAIN BELOW}'

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY BELOW).

COMPANY NAME: 

-MitelADDRESS: _5360 rive #300, Plano, TX,

SIGNATURE AND TITLE: Reg ionalVice President

TELEPHON E NUMBER: 

-
6-8860

DATE: 

-05/08/2020

75024

Page 116Item # 13.



$tate d $ixzoari
EXEHPTION FROM HISSOURI SALES AND USE TAX ON PURCHASES

lssued to: [issouri Tax ID

crry oF REpuBLrc Nunber ! Lzqg2ggo 
''

213 N MAIN Effective Date!
REPUBLIC l'l0 6573A ,. .,' ;, 

t,,,."i 'r, ',- il.- , ' ; '.. . ot/tL/zOO?

, , : I l'r. r,' .,., ': ..-,
. :,1:

':'': ' '' 'iYour appfication for sales/use tax exenEt stat6i ha.i been approvedpersuant t9, qectid,li- 1g+05'0,I , RSi.to. This letter- is,t.ss.ued ssdocunentatiqdl of iyour eiempt status
,I

Purcbases'!i, vour Agency a.re -not subject to sales or usq,'qbxif withiFr the':conduct o+ youi 'Agea]ey,t s exgnpt f unctiodE rj,i.and actieiti'es. 1,lh€n purchEsing .t:ttt tlri s exemption, f r..,iqistr
a1l selldrs or eendors .a copy -e,t t hl-€ Iefteh. Thie extnrp* j,En
may not b€ used by individuato rn+ii{ag tr€rsonal purchases. 

!

A contractor may purchase dnd pay for construction matetials exe pt
f rom sales tax vrhen f u1f i}].ing " ".d* i,ia.it l,,rit6 your aggF"tr-r"i;-" --if your Agencv lssues a project exehption cer.tificite iha,tte -

contractor niakes purchases in compliEnce With the provl€i6ns
of section 144.962, RSMo,.

Sales by ypur.Agency are 3ubjEct io e:.] apptic.Or. ra;i" urrd 
l

IocaI sales taxes. If you engage ln. the business of"seltthg
tangible peigonal Froperty or taxable services at r€tail, you l

must obtain a I'lissouri Retail .Satr.es Ta)( License anld c6ilect and
renit sal,es tax.

This is a continuing e*,,eilpt i o h sribj.ct to l.egi! l"at:! v e chanses
and review by the Director .!f .Rev,enue,, lf yqur..AglEncy ceasesto qualify as an exelrrpt entity, tilis exemptib; *lttt cease io Uevalid. This exemptibn j.i ,npt ass.isinabJ,aii6r i,rdnsferable. Itis an exemption from saL!s a6d,.r!9e ta5'es.niinlv and is not anexemption fl.om reaL or personal property tax.
Any alteration to this exenptioo lette. .enders it invalid.

If you have any questions regarding the use of this letter, !leas€contact the Division of Taxati.on and Collection, p,O. Box JJOO,Jefferson City, l,lO 65I05-3300, phone 5ZS-751-28S6.

Page 117Item # 13.



MISSOURI PROJECT EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

Authorization for Purchasing Construction Materials for Tax Exempt Project
(The Form and Content of this Exemption Certificate have been approved by the Missouri Department of Revenue)

EXEMPT ENTITY ISSUING CERTIFICATE
Name: City of Republic, Missouri
Address: 213 N. Main Avenue
City I Statelzip: Republic, Missouri 657 38

MO Tax Exempt I.D. #: 12492990
Contract Date:
Contract #:

Letter Effective Date:
Certifi cate Expiration Date:
Revised Expiration Date:

Project Description: Republic Aquatic Center - Flowrider Refurbishment
Project Location: 7ll E. Miller Rd. Republic, Missouri
Estimated Project Completion Date: April 30,2019
Auth. Signature: .Mayor Jeff Usserv Date:

The Missouri exempt entity named above hereby authorizes the purchase, without sales tax, of tangible personal property
to be incorporated or consumed in the construction of the project identified herein and no other, pursuant to Section
144.062 RSMo.

PIIRCIIASING CONTRACTOR OR ST]BCONTRACTOR
Name:
Address:
CitylStatelZip:

INSTRUCTIONS
EXEMPT ENTITY - A signed copy of this certificate, along with your MO Tax Exemption Letter, must be furnished to
each contractor and/or subcontractor who will be purchasing tangible personal property for use in the project. It is the

exempt entity's responsibility to ensure the validity of the certificate. You must issue a certificate with a Revised
Expiration Date if purchases will be required to complete the project beyond the original Project Exemption Date.

CONTRACTOR OR SUBCONTRACTOR - The contractor shall furnish a completed copy of this exemption
certificate, along with a copy of the exempt entity's MO Tax Exemption Letter, to all subcontractors, and any contractor
or subcontractor purchasing materials shall present copies of such documents to all material suppliers as authorization to
purchase, on behalf of the exempt entity, all tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated or consumed in
the construction of that project and no other on a tax-exempt basis. A copy of each certificate must be retained by the
purchaser for a period of five years.

MATERIAL SUPPLIER - A completed copy of this exemption certificate, along with the MO Tax Exemption Letter of
the exempt entity contracting for the project, must be obtained from the contractor or subcontractor making purchases of
tangible personal property for use in the project, and retained for audit purposes. lnvoices issued for such purchases

must reflect the name of the exempt entity and the project number assigned by the exempt entity shown above.

Page 118Item # 13.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS
REGARDING SECTIONS 285.525 THROUGH 285.550 RSMO, EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2OO9

Effective Januarv 1 . 2009, and pursuant to the State of Missouri's RSMO 285.530(1), No business entity or employer shall
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of
Missouri.

As a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand dollars by the state or by any political

subdivision of the state (e.g., City of Republic, MO) to a business entity, the business entity (Company) shall, by sworn
affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such business entity shall sign
an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the
contractedservices. IRSMO285-530(2)]

The City of Republic, Missouri, in order to comply with sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMO, requires the following
Bid and contract documents:

1

Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, Company shall comply

with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550 R.S.Mo. Contract award is contingent on

Company providing an acceptable notarized affidavit stating:

that Company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect to
the
employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

2. that Company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection
with
the contracted services.

Copies of affidavit can be found and downloaded on the City of Republic Missouri Public Works
website;

The City of Republic encourages companies that are not enrolled and participating in a federal work authorization program
to do so. E-Verify is an example of this type of program. lnformation regarding E-Verify is available at
http://www.dhs.qov/xprevproUp roorams/ac 1 185221678150.shtm or by calling 888-464-4218

Page 119Item # 13.



AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 285.500 R.S.MO., ET SEQ.
FOR ALL AGREEMENTS IN EXCESS OF $5,OOO.OO

EFFECTTVE 1l'12009

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, in and for the County of
State of personally appeared
who is (Title) of
(Name of company), (corporation), (padnership)
sworn did depose and say:

, (sole proprietorship), (limited liability company), and after being duty

('l ) that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

(2) that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien
in connection with the contracted services.

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 R.S. Mo., et seq

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit.

Signature

Printed Name

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of

Notary Public

My commission expires:

)
) ss.

)

(Name)

Page 120Item # 13.



o:cQo'

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 52410272 REVISION NUMBER:

DATE (TT/DDTYYYY}

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERNFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMANVELY OR NEGATIVELY ATEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTTFTCATE OF TNSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSUING TNSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANDTHE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: lf the certlffcate holder ls an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provlslons or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION lS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltions of the pollcy, certaln pollcies may requlre an endonsement. A statement on
this certiflcate does not confer rlqhts to the certtf,cate holder ln lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRooucER McGriff lnsurance Services
1 150 Julian Drive. Suite 200
Watkinsville, GA 30677

cot{TAcT
NAIE: Elliott Johnson

INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC I
TNSURERA : Federal lnsurance comoanv 20281

tltsuRED

Mitel Networks, lnc.
5360 Leoacv Dr.. Suite 300
Plano TX 75024

rr{suRER B: Great Northern lnsurance Gompany 20303

rt{suRERC: Chubb lndemniw lnsurance Comoanv 12777

IXSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TYPE OF INSURAI{CE rrch POLICYNUTBER
POLICY EFF

(TM'DDTYYYYI
POLICY EXP

ITH'DO/YYYY} LIHITS

A COMf, ERCIAL GENERAL LIAEIL]TY

CLAIMS.MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 5F& fl.*

7498U29 11t30t2019 11t30t2020 EACH OCCURRENCE s 300 000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea @rene) $ 300,000

MED EXP (Any me pemn) $ 10.000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 100,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE s 300.000

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 300 000
$

B AUTOiIOBILE LIABIL]TY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIREO
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

73606524 11t30t2019 11t30t2020 $ goo ooo
BODILY INJURY (Per peBon) $

BODILY INJURY (P6r a€idsnt) $

$

$

UTBRELLALIAB

EXCESSLI,AB

OCCUR

CLAIM$MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE $

AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION S $
C WORKERS COMPENSANON

AND ETPLOYERS' LIABILEY
ANYPROPRIETOR/FARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(lllndltory ln NH)
lf y6, dscribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belil

N'A

71764300 1113012019 11R,0t2020 PER
STATUTF

OTH-
FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 300,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPTOYEE $ 300 000
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s 300 000

DESCRIPION OF OPERATIOilS , LOCAnOilS, VEHICLES (ACORD l0l, AddlUon.l R.mlrtl Schedule, mly be.tt ched lI mo6 !p!c. ls nqutrcd)

Evidence ol Coverage.

CERTIFICATE

ACORD 2s (2016103)
@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rlghts reserved.

The AGORD name and logo are reglstered marke of AGORD
\)n1n21? I 1q/2n M,.rA, I Etli^rr .r^hne^. I 11t1ql)nl9 ?.tq.2n pM tFqTr I Drn6 I 

^f 
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIAED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRANON DATE THEREOF, NOTICE wlLL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE UUITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

To Whom lt May Concern

fl,* &Jl[*
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTAT]VE

Mike BreedloveI Page 121Item # 13.



a
a

a

'-a

2.

EEI-!
t"- -^r-*ll*=

c

o

o

a
o

Service Order
Prepared for City of Republic

May 04,2O2O

Prepared by:
Grayson Sims

grayson.sims@mitel.com

Quote# 1 't 850971

oo Mitet

o

rl--

I

t ,

Page 122Item # 13.



ssaursnq rno^ ol uorldnrslp
azrLururl.rr pue ssaluouo uorlsuerl Jno^ aleu ll.a,^ 'astuodxe uolle]otut pnols lo sipa^ qllM 'lsej paJa^ sue

strorlsanb .rno^ le6 ol e3tlras Jno utqlt/v1 uognq dlaq aql a6e:a,ra; lo sn qltm leq, 'oseq aOpal^ oul
aurluo rno asn ' 

L|VZ dlaq ol ssaf,3B aaeq no,i ourmoul pa:nsse lsat s^eMle uec noI '1a1r11 q1r1y1

qsBAJ S,ULrE Urqlr,u dleH

'a6ueqo

spaeu ssaursnq se suorssrurod aperodn puB salgoLd qcleu pue xru.r ',(1r;euo[cunl ppe ol ]oMod aql no^
arr6 sue;d aor^Jas alqrxa[ s,loauuo3 pnolCtt/! Molloulol rlltm l3nls al,noI leqm y,usl lepol ,inq noI leqM

6urcud alqrxeg 'eldurg

'elep a^tusuos lcaloJd ol paau oqi\ sassaursnq
ro; acuerqdu.roc ZOOS pue WdlH suoddns osle lcauuoC pnolOrli\ ']a^rlap l,uop aM } sarl;euad lercueurl

ql!/!l svls pue aurrldn %966 66 qlr/r\ Iltltqerlal lno l3eq aM'outql e lnoqe IJJo/y\ ol a^eq l,uop no^
os 'uorld^Jcuo pue 

^ouepunpoJ 
Jo sro^el lela^as qlr/ sraluao elep t rarl'arncas,(1t16rq Jo lno palolda6

uo ]uno3 uPc no^ Ilrlrqerlau

'lser 6utuunr pue dn srasn pue suortecol 
^ 

au le6 ol ,{see 1r saleur 0uruorsrrrord 
^eld-pue-onld ipapaau a3uauadxo u.rocslal ou - slq6rsur pue 6urllrq'suorssfl.lr]od 's.rasn aoeueu] o1 s1oo1 aurrllear no,(

sa^ro leuod lrouuoC pnolCrn aq1 no^ rol lr op JauUBd e a^eq ro asnoq ur suorlecrunuuroc rno^ a6euel^
leuod luauJa6eueur lsnqou

's^ ar^ peleprlosuos pue suollnq urolol-Icrl3 a16urs 6urqcune;
-ssoro se qons sa]nleal paler6alur qlrfi acuauedxa jesn eql seurluearls are!alur asn-ol-Isee s,loeuuoO

pnolSrll a^rlcnpo.rd 6uraq auu arour pue )iro^^ a]eMuos alll aleur ol 
^ 

oq Ino 6uun6r1 auu ssal puads
acuauadxa Jasn a^runlul

'teprno:d

alours e uo4 
^lssallueas 

olB3lunuuoc uec no^ os sauoqd dl pue raluac lseluoa 'uolleloqelloc 'Iuot]dalal

lnqlally\ qlt/r^ uorlnlos uotleloqellos pue suolles!untxuoJ olaldul03 e sJaAllap tcouuoc pnol3lt4
suorlsJrunuJuroc ssalursas'auo-ur-llv

slllouag lcsuuoc pnolc!uu

'spoau ssaursnq anbrun lnoi slrl leql ased B le
Ir aurnsuoc ol 

^lrlrqrxau 
alll pue nol Jol lq6rJ uorlnlos aql asooqo ol lal"1od aql noA salt0 otloluod asnoq-ur

-}lnq 'peorq rno aceldlauBuJ 6urn;oaa {lprder e ul a3ej 
^aql 

saouallBqc .(6o1ouqce1 pue suollesrunuuloo
eq1 aleorneu uaql dlarl ol plroM aql punoJe sassautsnq /iq palsnJl uaaq seq lallnl 'sjea^ 9t ueql elou lol

a

"/
o

a

Page 123Item # 13.



Additional Services & Products
lP phones
Orrr rnrrrier| t)utll-in-lto!se lP phofes provide a pLfipose-l)uilt. rtegrated experien(e atrd gtve Lrs itrl]

control over lunirlrorarl ly and rrser experien(ie. Witlr the 6900 series [)i]ones. you ll !tet cordless and

Blrreloulh ol)lLons irl!s our l\4oirilel-irrk [lr]ctionalily so yori can lalk tn ways that you ptefet. frorrt

ary$rhere easrly (,hoose fron] three expansive models and a large assortrl'ret'lt of accessorles 10

rnr:rease rnolrrltl, slrearrl ne workflo\,vs a11 d enhance productivtty.

Native integrations and advanced apps
N4icloud Connect offers a wide-variety of native integrations so users can work in the systems they prefer

stay proactive and deliver positive customer experiences. Our native solutions with leading third-party
providers minimize professional services and get you up and running fast. Choose the right one for your

specific users so they can work from the systems they already do such as CRMs, ERPS, calendars, web

dialers and more.

Enhance your customer experience
Engage with your customers when and how they want to communicate with phone, email, chat, SMS and

social media capabilities. Whether you re looking for an integrated contact center or the flexibility of an

over-the{op solution, we have you covered.

Trusted by Leading Companies & Analysts

iIETFLIX t,t,
Western Mutual
Insurance (iroup

$jFonuoNDAssErs

GT(l T()UilDAII(lN

@ SMILE DOCTORS
IrI:f:flI.'l

Gartner. FROST O' SULLIVAN I
Tollu-

i l'l ,.!

Page 124Item # 13.



$$$JAlusc lceluoS lcauuoc pnolcrr{,

$$$xel-oHreurl,

$$(s6urpJocsr llec ? saJusrsluoc qs^ /orpne 'shll rol ees,{ Z) 6ut^tqcJve

$6urpJoc€U lleC uO-sIe^\Vz

eNelurJoleJado

elr6urpjocau llPC puPuJoO-uOz

$suoueroelul y\luc raqlo ?o3c./olseles

$uo[ducsueJf lreurf -oHreuracroA

(so! t ptoJpuv) el!qo!\ JoJ lcauuoc

JolPro qaM

.uolsualx3 allqoy\i / 6u[nou llec alr{ purl

uo[er6alul e]rns e ?.oloolno

.ouoqduos

iued ,zived zLIued 8

.6urllPC osprn raad-ol-Jaad

.atels IIlrqelrB^v / ecuesaJd

.(nll) 6urOPssal\ luelsul

Ayed t.6uueqs doDlsao / ourJueraluoC qoM iuPd oorived 9z

Iued I.6ur3uoJoluoc orpnV ,ued 00!

rIeurS-ollreuraeron / lreuracro^

dde qql Iq pep!^ord sernte.L luallg dolISAO

(ueF qcee loj luo.rojJLtp) salnleal Xgd

pa]lurllun(piJnoqlno clsaurop) qluo!I iad s€lnurnl palrLrirlun

JequnN auoqd (olo) lP!o lcairo

saJnlEaJ al!tfJoluaJd slelluass3

suPld ac!ruas lcouuoS pnolS!tlu

$

rSy{S ssaulsng / lJo/liuJPal la}l!"/

.6uDueJaluoC oaprA

ived 9a

leuod ururpv

polrurlun

Page 125Item # 13.



Service Order

Customer: City of Republic

May 04,2O2O
36 months
'105

lnstall Locations
t. 213 N Main St, Republig Missouri,65T!8, USA
2. 701U.S. Hwy 60 W, Repubtic, MO,65738-1063, USA
3. 54O Civic Blvd, Republtc, MO, 65738, Untted St.t€s
4. 7U E. Miller Rd., Republic, MO, 65738, Unit€d Stat.s
5. 221 N Main Ave, R€public, MO,65738, United St res
6. 204 N Main Ave, Republic, MO,85738, United States
7. 911N W€st Ave, Repubtiq MO,55738, Unit€d States
8. 3425 t. Sawyer Rd., Republic, MO, 05738, United Stetes

Regular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

LJ nit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile
MiCloud Connect Premier Profile
MiCloud Connect Elite Profile

Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - Promotional
Discount

lntegrated DECT Headset (NA)
Rental

RFP 12 Single Cell Base Station (NA)
Rental

112 DECT Phone, Universal
(w/Charger) Rental

M695 PKM Rental
lmplementation Services

JumpStart

$29.9s
$37.99
$54.99

$10.00

$o.oo

$6.00

$s.00

$s.00

$4.00

$0.00

18

0

1

4

'10

19

9
0
0

1

$569.81
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$5.00

$20.00

$40.00

$0.00

$10.00

$0.00

$6.00

$5.00

$s.00

$4.00

$0.00

$10.00

$18.00
$22.79
$32.99

$227 .81

$o.oo

$0.00

$5.00

$20.00

$40.00

$0.00

s10.00

$342.00
$0.00
$0.00

Service Monthl Commitment Total: $417.00

213 N Main St, Republic, Missouri,65738, USA
Scrv ce [,1or.rth1y Corrn] tnrenl

Date:
Term of Service:
Total Profiles:
Total Agents:

1

Page 126Item # 13.



Regular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

lmplementation Services

J u m pStart s50.00

$3.00

19

1

$950.00

$3.00 $3.00

$0.00 $950.00

$3.00

$0.00
One-Time Total: $3.00

I

One-Time Charges

f ----l

Page 127Item # 13.



Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount TotalRegular
Price

otv Extended
Regular Price

Mitel Services

$1 19.90 $180.00

$0.00

$10.00

$10.00

$0.00

Profiles

MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 Year
Promotional Discount

RFP 12 Single Cell Base Station (NA)
Rental

1 12 DECT Phone, Universal
(w/Charger) Rental
lmpl6m6ntation Services

JumpStart $0.00

10

8

2

2

$0.00

$18.00

$0.00

$s.00

$5.00

$0.00

$200.00Service Monthly Commitment Total:

701 U.S. Hwy 60 W, Republic, MO, 65738-1063, USA

Serv ce lJor'ltlrlv Conrr tnrenl

Regular
Price

oty Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Drscount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

Hardware

lmplementation Services

JumpStart $50.00 10 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 s0.00
One-Time Total: $0.00

One-Time Charges

$29.99

$o.oo

$5.00

$5.00

10

$299.90

$0.00

$10.00

$10.00

Page 128Item # 13.



Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Prollles

MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 Year
Promotional Discount
lmplementation Services

JumpStart

$29.99

$0.00

$0.00

24

24

24 $719.76

$0.00

$0.00

$18.00

$0.00

$0.00

s287 .76 $432.00

$0.00

$0.00
Service Monthly Commitment Total: $432.00

540 Civic Blvd, Republic, MO, 65738, United States
Serv ce l.llrrllr v Cornll]!tnrefl

E

Regular
Price

oty Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel S.rvices
Profiles

Hardware

lmplementation S6rvic6s

Jumpstart $50.00 24 $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 $0.00
One-Time Total: $o.oo

One-Time Charges

Regular
Price

Page 129Item # 13.



Regular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile
Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 Year
Promotional Discount

RFP 12 Single Cell Base Station (NA)
Rental

'l'12 OECT Phone, Universal
(dchargeo Rental
lmplementation Services

JumpStart

s29.99

$10.00

$0.00

$5.00

$5.00

$0.00

19

19

1

14

1

5

$s69.81

$10.00

$0.00

ss.00

$s.00

$18.00

$10.00

$0.00

9227.81 $342.00

$10.00

$0.00
Service Monthly Commitment Total: $382.00

71 1 E. Miller Rd., Republic, MO, 65738, United States
Ser,/ ce l,4onthlv (lalfrr lllre!r1

Regular
Price

otv E)dended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

Options

Micloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

lmplementation Services

JumpStart $s0.00

$3.00

19

1

$950.00

$3.00 $3.00

$0.00 $950.00

$3.00

s0.00
One-Time Total: $3.00

One-Time Charges

$0.00

$5.00

$25.00

$o.oo

$0.00

$5.00

$25.00

T

I

Page 130Item # 13.



TotalDiscountDiscount6d
Price Per

Unit

otv Extended
Regular Price

Regular
Price

$119.90 $180.00

$10.00

$0.00

$0.00

10

10

10

1

$299.90

$10.00

$0.00

$o.oo

$18.00

$10.00

$0.00

$0.00

$29.99

$10.00

$0.00

$0.00

Profiles
MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile

Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 Year
Promotional Discount
lmplementation Services

JumpStart
$190.00Service Monthlv Commitment Total:

221 N Main Ave, Republic, MO, 65738, United States

Ser v ce [\lof tl]lv Colrrrll lnrerrl

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount TotalRegular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Mitel Services

Profiles

Options

MiCloud Connect EmaiFFax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

lmplementation Services

Jumpstart $s0.00

$3.00

10

1

$500.00$500.00

$3.00 $3.00

$0.00

$3.00

$0.00
One-Time Total: $3.00

One-Time Charges

Mitel Services

Page 131Item # 13.



Regular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

MiCloud Connect Essentials profile
Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 year
Promotional Discount

Integrated DECT Headset (NA)
Rental

RFP 12 Single Cell Base Station (NA)
Rental

112 DECT Phone, Universal
(w/Charger) Rental
lmplementation Services

JumpStarl

Profiles

s29.99

$0.00

$6.00

$5.00

$5.00

$10.00

$0.00

14

IJ

14

1

1

1

1

$0.00

$6.00

$5.00

$5.00

$419.86

$10.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6.00

$5.00

$5.00

$18.00

$10.00

$0.00

$167.86

$0.00

$6.00

$5.00

$5.00

$252.00

$10.00

$0.00
Service Monthly Commitment Total: $278.00

204 N Main Ave, Republic, MO, 65738, United States
Service Monthly Commitment

Regular
Price

otv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

Options

MiCloud Connect Email-Fax Box
(includes 500 pages)
Hardware

lmplementation Services

JumpStart $50.00

$3.00

14

,|

$700.00

$3.00 $3.00

$0.00 $700.00

$3.00

$0.00
One-Time Total: $3.00

One-Time Charges

Mitel Servlces

Page 132Item # 13.



Regular
Price

Qtv Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services

MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile
Hardware

6930 lP Phone Rentat - 3 Year
Promotional Discount
lmplementation Services

JumpStart

Profiles

$29.99

$0.00

$0.00 4

4

4

$119.96

$0.00

$0.00

$ 18.00

$0.00

$0.00

$47.96 $72.00

$0.00

$0.00
Service Month Commitment Total: $72.00

ve, Republic, MO, 65738, United States
Service Monthly Commitment

911 N West A

Regular
Price

oty Extended
Regular Price

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount Total

Mitel Services
Profiles

Hardware

lmplementation Servicos
JumpStart $s0.00 4 $200.00 $0.00 $200.00 $0.00

One-Time Total: $0.00

One-Time Char

Page 133Item # 13.



TotalDiscountDiscounted
Price Per

l,..lnit

Extended
Regular Price

QtyRegular
Price

$90.00

$0.00

$0.00

$18.00

$0.00

$0.00

$59.9s$149.95

$0.00

$0.00R

5

5

$29.99

$0.00

$0.00

Profiles
MiCloud Connect Essentials Profile

Hardware
6930 lP Phone Rental - 3 Year

Promotional Discount
I mplementation Services

JumpStart
Service Month Commitment Total:

3425 E. Sawyer Rd., RePublic, MO, 65738, United States

Discounted
Price Per

Unit

Discount TotalRegular
Price

oty Extended
Regular Price

Mitel Services
Profiles

Hardware

lmplementation Services

JumpStart $50.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00
One-Time Total: $0.00

One-Time Charges

Service Monthly Commitment

--------- Mitel Services

$90.00

Page 134Item # 13.



Business Terms and Conditions ("Business Terms"):

1. This Service Order is Mitel Confidential lnformation and is valid for acceptance by Customer for thirty (30)
days from the date issued.

2. During the Service Term, Customer may increase the number of Entitlements for the Cloud Services
described in this Service Order as set out in Section 7.3 of the Global Terms of Service ("GTOS"), at the
Services Fees set out on the Service Order. To add Entitlements for Cloud Services not originally quoted on
the Service Order, such additions will be at Mitel's list price for such, or as otheMise accepted by Customer
in the online portal at the time such Entitlements are added. A one-time implementation fee of $50.00 will
be assessed per User (as defined in the GTOS) added.

3. Ouring the Service Term, Cuslomer shall not be allowed to decrease Entitlements for Cloud Services below
the quantity contracted on this Service Order, unless Customer terminates this Service Order (which may
incur an early termination fee) and enters into a new Service Order to reflect the updated number of
Entitlements and associated Service Fees, if applicable agrees upon new terms, including pricing, on a new
Service Order.

4. lmplementation Packages include Local Number Porting (LNP) for the first two (2) invoices for each Site.
LNP for each additional invoice is $250 USD per Site.

5. Customer acknowledges that the Service Fees described in this Service Order do not include, and
Customer is responsible for:

a. Taxes. Fees and Surcharqes. Any and all applicable taxes, fees and surcharges as
including without limitation those described at httosJ/onevlew.mitel.com/s/article/Taxes-
Fees-and-Surcharqes.

b. Shiooino. Shipping costs for Hardware, which shall be invoiced separately.
c. Usaoe. Calls outside contiguous United States and Canada, premium-rate telephone

numbers (e.9., Oirectory assistance calls,900 numbers, etc.) and toll-free inbound calls
are billed on a usage basis.

6. Customer will be invoiced in advanced for non-usage based Service Fees and in arrears at the end of each
month for usage-based Service Fees.

7. Provided that Customer executes this Service Order prior to expiration of the otfer as described in Section 1

of these Business Terms, Customer shall be entitled to the promotional discount on (i) the 6930 Hardware
rentals as described in this Service Order during the lnitial Service Term ("Hardware Promotional Pricing');
and (ii) Essentials profiles as described on this Service Order during the Service Term. Customer
acknowledges thal the Hardware Promotional Pricing will not apply to Add-Ons or Renewal Service Terms.
During Renewal Service Terms, or for Add-Ons pursuant to this Service Order, Customer shall be entitled
to a discount equal to 39.98% off Mitel list price for 6930 Hardware rentals.

8. All products and services described in this Service Order are subiect to the GTOS detailed at
https://www. mitel.com/leoal/mitel-cloud-services-terms-and-conditions. and incorporated her6in by
reference. Execution of this Service Order by Customer shall constitute Custome/s acceptance of such
GTOS and notice to Mitel to proceed as described in this Service Order.

For a full description of the lmplementation Services included in Jumpstart, please reference the Jumostart
ScryLce Description

Agreed and Accepted

Customer

Authorized Signature. Date

Page 135Item # 13.



ame an

*l confrrm I am authorized to sign on behaif of Customer

Page 136Item # 13.



€MERGEiICY SERVICES NOTICT

Daflrltlons. Terms not otherwise defined in th is nolice are as defined in the Global Terms of Service located at:httDs ,cotn/leeell mitel'cloud s terms a

umlt'tion3 Rel'tlve lo Enhan..d EmerSancy sa.vic6; co5t. Because of the unique nature of volp ielephone calls, EmerSency servicesthrouSh your cloud services will be handled differently than traditional phone se-rvice. you acknowledge and agree that the EmerSehcyservices provided hereunder have limitations relative to the enhanced (or similar) emergency services that are available on most traditjonaltelephone services. Subject to the limitations set out herein, Emertencl Services can be accessed, rree ofcharSe.

Emal8ancY Sarvices Devlces and lnitiatlont Emergency services will only functjon if your use(s) are using an approved device, equipment orsoftw're and after Your service order has been processed and you have received anemergency servace confitmation, lf your users use non-
approved equipment or software or attempt to call EmerSency services prior to confirmation, the Emer8ehcy services may fail or may ue
forwaded to a non-public, backup emergency answering service,

Emargcncy sewlaas RaSl,tEtion. You acknowled8e and agree that it may nor te possible for ernergency op€rators and authorities to identifythe
actual location of a ute(s) who dials EmerSency services through the cloud services. where you pu.chase Entitlements that include our slp
Serviaes, we will register the followinS as the addresses where your Users will use Cloud s€rvices and to which Emergency Services should be
dispalched by defaulti (i) the address(es) listed on your Service Order, and (ii) if an online portal is made available u/ith the Cloud Servicet the
addtess(et) entered in the online portal. lt is your responsibility to ensure that such default address(es) are acaurate and, iI changed, that you
notify us of such changes either through our online portal, where available, or by contactinS our support orSanization at least ten {10) days in
advance. lf emergency addresses registered are not accurate, emergency personnel (e.g. police, fire, ambulance) may b€ sent to lhe wrong
address. ln certain cases, an EmerSenc"y S€rvices call may be routed to a telephone emergency dispatch center lhat may not normally receive
Emer8ency Services calls from the Use/s re8istered location instead of a "traditional" wireline Emergency Services dispatch center- tn this case,
emergencl pertonnel may not have the Use/s registered location and/or phone number on file. Regardless of whether an emergency address
has been registered, Users dialing tmergency Servicer should always be prepared to state their location and phone number promptv and clearly
to ensure that emergenc'y operators have complete and accurate information. This is particularly important as in certain circumstances
technical limitation may prevent this information from being made available to the dlspatch center. lfthe User's registered .ddress is different
than the Use/s actual location, delays in handling of Customer's emergency call may be introduced and, consequently, result in fire, poliae or
emergencY personnel either not being able to find a User(s) location or significantly delay response time. Finally, you may incur addhional costs,
fineg or other penahiet including service provider chaces, resuhing from improper di3patch o, Em€rgency Services or calls to emer8ency s€rvice
dispatchers where you and/or your Users have failed to update us with the Use/s correct address.

Accaptanc. o, [lmltatlons. You acknowledge that you have received the inforrnation regarding the limitations of our EmerSency Services,
understand them, and assume the risk5 associated with such limitations. where your Entitlements do not include our SIP S€wices, you should
consuh yourSlP Services provider to fufther understand EmerSency S€Mce limitations.

Accepted and Agre.d

Customer:

Authorired Signature'

Printed liame and Title

'lconfirm lam authoriaed to sign on behalfol Customer
Date

EmaBancy sewice limltatlons: Emergency Services will not function if (a) a VolP device lails or is not confiSured properly, (b)the Cloud Servicea are
not workinS for any reason includinS without limitation a power outaSe, broadbaM seMae outage, network congestion, suspension or disconnection
of your Cloud SeNicet broadband connealion failure, use of a non-native telephone number, electrical power loss, or your failure to meet our
minimum technicals€Mce requirements, ifapplacabl€, or (c) where your Entitlementsdo not lnclude ourSlP Services, failt/re or dilaonnection of third
party SIP S€rvices. Followin8 a power outage, you or your lJsers may need to reset or reconfigure your equipment prior to being able to use the
Cloud S€rvices, includin8 dialint Emer8ency Services. EmerSency operators and/or authorities may be unable to identify a Use/s phone numb€r
in order to call them back iI (a) their call is unable to be completed, is dropped or is disconnected, (b) the User is unable to communicate their
phone number, or (c) the Cloud Services are not operational tor any reason. ln such circumstances, and provided the Cloud Services are
available, the User should redial Emergency Services. For technical reasons, includinS network aongestion, it is possible that Emergency calls
will produce a busy signal or will take lonSer to connect when compared with trad itional emergency calls. When callinS Emergency Services
Users should not han8 up until told to do 50 by emergency op€rators as emerSenc,y operators and authorities may also be unable to hold the
line open in the event the User hangs up. You further acknowledge and agree (and you will caule your Use6 to do same) that we do not have
any control over whether, or the manner in which, emergenay calls using the Cloud Services ate answered or addressed by any local
emergencl response center and we rely on third parties to assist us in routinS emergency calls to local emergency response centers.
Emergency services are available only within the jurisdiction in which lhe User is registered and the Cloud Services cannot be used to make
emerSency calls outside of same.

lnfonn othei l|3€r3: You are responsible for notifyinS, and you agree to notii/, any User or potential Users ofyour Cloud Services of the nature
and limitations of Emergency Services on the Cloud Services as described herein.

Page 137Item # 13.



Authorized Contacts for City of Republic:

Good communication is the foundation of a great relationship. we ask that you tell. us. about your team so that we may

begin our retationsnip communiJl;;;ih ti'.;tr*t individuals. Your team may include people inside and outside your

org"anization. Mitel partners often tlll these roles for their clients'

There are five roles that must be assigned to one or many individuals on your Mitel account' Each role conveys a specific

set of permissions anO responsiOitities-toiinstatting and managing your Mitel service' For more information on lhe specific

roles and the permissions conveyed please visit:

Full Name Email Address Role

For Role: Please enter one of DM Super user, PM, Billing, Technical or Emergency

By signing below, I authorize the listed individuals to perform the assigned roles for the indicated locations both current
and future and authorize Mitel to contact the listed individuals. I understand as the default Decision Maker I can change or
rescind role assignments at any time within my Mitel portal or by contacting Mitel.

Further, I understand that depending on the specific role designed I am granting the assignee access to data within our
corporate phone system including, but not limited to, billing data, call detail records, call recordings, as well as
authorization to make changes to call routing, conligurations and contracted services.

Agreed and Accepted

Gustomer

Authori zed srgnature- Date

Name and Title
'lconfirm lam authorized to saSn on beha lf of Customer

Roles:
https://oneview.mitel.com/s/article/Account-AuthorizedContacts

Page 138Item # 13.



City of Republic
May 04,2020
Term of Service 36 months

Sum Location
213 N Main blic Missouri,65738 USA

Monthly Charges One-time Charges

$417.00 $3.00

701 U.S. 60 W, RE ubli MO 65738-1063 USA 0.00 $0.00

540 Civic Blvd Re blic MO 65738, United States $432.00 $o.oo

71 'l E. Miller Rd. Re blic MO,65738 United States $382.00 $3.00

1 N t\,4a In AVE Re u blic N4o 6 t58 U n ited StateS $190.00 $3.00

204 N Main Ave, bti MO, 65738 United States $278.00 $3.00

9 1 1 N est Ave Re U blic Mo 6 'ra 8 U n Ited tateS $72.00 $o.oo

3425 E. Sawyer Rd., Republic, MO, 65738, United
States

$e0.00 $0.00

$2,061.00
Total Monthly

Charges

$12.00
Total One-Time

Charoes

Summary by Services MonthlV Charqes One-time Charges
Circuits $ $
Profiles $1,890.00 $
Options $40.00 $ 12.00
MiCloud Connect CX $ $
lmplementation Services $o.oo $o.oo

$131.00 $o.oo
Credits $ $
Third Party Applications $ $

$2,061.00
Total Monthly

Charqes

$12.00
Total One-Time

Charqes

Aqreed and Accepted

Authorized Signature.

ame a

Date

Hardware

'l confirm I am authorized to sign on behalf of Customer.

Page 139Item # 13.



'a

unauthorized use (of any kind) of the tool, information, or pricing will be considered an infringement of rights and may resuh in termination of any Mitel agreement.

Page 140Item # 13.



PHONE SYSTEM SEALED 

BIDS-5/8/20 3:00 p.m.
Bid Tabulations

Company Total Bid Other Specifications

Rayfield Communication $17,761.25 hosted, $18,840.25 on premise

Momentum Telecom $24.88/month/6

Jive Communications $2,342.04/month

Mitel $74,196 ($2,061/month)

Verizon $43,432.00 ($32,700 service, $10,732 equipment)

STL Com $3,879.75 (60 month contract $232,785.00)

Pearson-Kelly $3,349.94-MRC ($10,056.00 NRC) See Statement of Work for complete details

Vertical Communications $1,753.95/month

Page 141Item # 13.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-14 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Authorizing the Establishment of a Bank Account and 
Authorized Signers for the Municipal Court. 

Submitted By: Debbie Parks 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

Issue Statement 

To open a Municipal Court bank account to be operated by the Municipal Court for the purpose of 
depositing receipts from the Show Me Court system and remitting payments with those funds. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City will open a Municipal Court bank account in conjunction with the switch to the Show-Me-
Courts system.  The Office of State Courts Administration is requiring the Municipal Court to have a 
separate bank account for processing the receipts received through the Show-Me-Courts system.  The 
Municipal Court bank account will be on the City of Republic’s Tax ID, and the City of Republic Finance 
Department will have limited online access to the account.  The Municipal Court will have oversite of the 
account and will be responsible for following established internal controls over the account.  The City of 
Republic’s Finance Department will not be responsible for the monthly reconciliation of this account.  
The Municipal Court will submit a completed reconciliation of the account to the City of Republic 
Finance Department for review. The Finance Department will not have access to the Show Me Court 
system once the system goes live. 
 
In addition, the City designates individuals to act on behalf of the City in connection with banking 
services. To formalize the designation of signers, a resolution designating signers is being presented to 
City Council for approval.  The Municipal Court bank account will have the following signers on the 
account:  Ryan Ricketts, Judge and Penny Mayes, Court Clerk.   Two signature line checks will be ordered 
and required for this account.   
 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 
 

Page 142Item # 14.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-14
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A BANK ACCOUNT AND AUTHORIZED 

SIGNERS FOR THE MUNICIPAL COURT

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, in Ordinance 20-06, the Council approved an intergovernmental agreement 
with the Office of State Courts Administrator for the implementation of the Show-Me-Courts 
Court Automation Software (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and as required by the Office of State Courts 
Administrator, the Municipal Court is required to have a separate bank account from the City to 
process receipts received through Show-Me-Courts; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement and as required by the Office of State Courts 
Administrator, the Municipal Court, through the Presiding Judge and Court Clerk, will oversee 
this bank account and will be responsible for the funds and the reconciliation of the account; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Court will have oversite of the account and will be responsible 
for following established internal controls over the account and will submit a completed 
reconciliation of the account to the City of Republic’s Finance Department for review; and 

WHEREAS, the Council deems it necessary to establish this new bank account and 
authorized signers for the Municipal Court pursuant to the Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Bank of Missouri is hereby requested, authorized, and directed to establish a 
bank account for the Municipal Court of the City of Republic to process 
receipts received through Show-Me-Courts. 

Section 2. Bank of Missouri is hereby requested, authorized, and directed to honor 
checks, drafts, or other orders of payment of money drawn in Municipal Court 
of the City of Republic’s name when bearing or purporting to bear the 
signatures of two of the following: 

Ryan Rickets Presiding Judge 
Penny Mayes Court Clerk 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020. 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-14

Page 143Item # 14.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-14

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-14 

           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________ 

Page 144Item # 14.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 20-R-15 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Providing for Phase Two of the Covid-19 Recovery Plan for 
the City of Republic. 

Submitted By: David Cameron, City Administrator 

Date: May 19, 2020 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To revise the guidelines recommended in Resolution 20-R-09 to adhere to the orders issued by the State 

of Missouri.   

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

Resolution 20-R-15 eliminates some of the additional guidelines issued by the City of Republic beyond 

the order issued by the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services on March 13, 2020.  The 

Resolution also indicates that the City of Republic will adopt any future orders issued by the Missouri 

Department of Health and Senior Services regarding COVID-19. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-15. 

Page 145Item # 15.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

PROVIDING FOR PHASE TWO OF THE COVID-19 RECOVERY PLAN FOR THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, ("City" or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has previously recognized the highly contagious nature of COVID-

19, the health issues associated with it, and adopted the advice and direction given by federal, 
state, and local officials to combat COVID-19 in our community on March 24, 2020, in Resolution 
20-R-07; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2020, based upon current COVID-19 data and modeling, the 

Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services (“DHSS”) issued a new Order (“State Order”) 
superseding the previous Stay Home Order dated April 3, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the new State Order sets forth new social distancing requirements for 

individuals and business to continue to combat the spread of COVID-19; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2020, the Governor of Missouri announced the first phase of the 

State’s recovery plan to gradually start the reopening of economic and social activities in the State 
while still protecting the public from the COVID-19 threat; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, the federal social distancing guidelines expired with the 

purpose of leaving any further social distancing guidelines up to state and local governments; 
and 

WHEREAS, on April 30, 2020, the City passed Resolution 20-R-09 providing for the Initial 
COVID-19 Recovery Plan of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, since April 30, 2020, the data and modeling related to COVID-19 have 

continued to change in our area; and 
 
WHEREAS, The threat of COVID-19 still exists and continues to pose a health threat to 

our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, large gatherings of individuals accelerate the exposure and transmission of 

COVID-19 and poses a health risk to our community; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Council finds that based upon current data and modeling performed by 
the State of Missouri and the DHSS, the COVID-19 recommendations contained in the April 27, 
2020, DHSS State Order shall be in place in the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. In accordance with the April 27, 2020, State Order issued by the Missouri 
Department of Health and Senior Services, “Exhibit A”, as amended, attached 
hereto, and incorporated by reference, shall be in effect within the City limits Page 146Item # 15.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15 

of Republic and shall control and supersede all prior or inconsistent 
Resolutions or Orders concerning COVID-19 regulations based upon the 
authority granted to the City under the Charter, Missouri Statutes, and the 
Missouri Constitution. 
 

Section 2. Should the April 27, 2020, State Order issued by the Missouri Department of 
Health and Senior Services be superseded, amended or revoked by the 
Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services, it shall control and 
supersede Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3. The City Administrator, or designee, shall determine the applicability of this 

Resolution on businesses or individuals. 
 
Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 5. The provisions of this legislation are severable, and if any provision hereof is 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this legislation. 

 
Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of May 2020. 
 

           
     Jeff Ussery, Mayor 

Attest: 
 

      
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

Approved as to Form: ___________________________________, Scott Ison, City Attorney  

Final Passage and Vote:  ________________________________________________________  

Page 147Item # 15.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15 

 
EXHIBIT A

1. When individuals leave their homes or places of residence to work, to access food,
health care, necessities, or to engage in other activities, they should at all times 
practice social distancing. Individuals may go to and from an individual’s place of 
worship, provided that limitations on social distancing are properly adhered to. 

2. In accordance with the guidelines from the President and the Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention (CDC), every person and business in the City shall abide by 
social distancing requirements, including maintaining six feet (6’) of space between 
individuals. This provision shall not apply to family members or individuals 
performing job duties that require contact with other people closer than six feet (6’). 
Individuals performing job duties that require contact with other people closer than 
six feet (6’) should take enhanced precautionary measures to mitigate the risks of 
contracting or spreading COVID-19. This provision shall apply in all situations, 
including, but not limited to, when customers are standing in line or individuals are 
using shared indoor or outdoor spaces. 

 
3. In accordance with the guidelines from the President, the CDC, and the Centers for 

Medicaid and Medicare Services, people shall not visit nursing homes, long-term care 
facilities, retirement homes, or assisted living homes unless to provide critical 
assistance or in end-of-life circumstances. Elderly or otherwise vulnerable populations 
should take enhanced precautionary measures to mitigate the risks of contracting 
COVID-19. 

 
4. Any entity that employs individuals that is engaged in retail sales to the public, 

shall limit the number of individuals in any particular retail location as follows:
 

(1) Twenty-five (25) percent or less of the entity’s authorized fire or building code 
occupancy for a retail location with square footage of less than ten thousand square 
feet (10,000 ft²); 

(2) Ten (10) percent or less of the entity’s authorized fire or building code occupancy 
for a retail location with square footage of ten thousand square feet (10,000 ft²) or 
more. 

 

5. Nothing contained herein shall prohibit school teachers, school staff, students, and 
parents from reentering school buildings in order to work, retrieve personal 
belongings, or return school property as long as limitations on social distancing are 
properly adhered to.  Notwithstanding section 2 of this Exhibit, nothing contained 
herein shall prohibit daycares, child care providers, or schools from providing child 
care in accordance with CDC guidelines. Further, this does not prohibit schools from 
providing Food and Nutritional Services for those children that qualify.

6. Restaurants may offer dining-in services, provided that the limitations on social distancing 
and other precautionary public health measures, including proper spacing of at least six 
feet (6’) between tables, lack of communal seating areas to parties that are not connected, 
and having no more than ten (10) people at a single table, are properly adhered to. The 

Page 148Item # 15.



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-15 

continued use of drive-thru, pickup, or delivery options is encouraged throughout the 
duration of this Resolution.

 
7. Pursuant to section 44.101, RSMo, this Resolution shall not be construed to prohibit or 

restrict the lawful possession, transfer, sale, transportation, storage, display, or use of 
firearms or ammunition during the declared state of emergency, subject to the provisions 
set forth herein. 

8. Businesses in the City shall further be allowed to use outdoor space, including parking 
areas they are authorized to use, which are directly connected to the business to conduct 
business lawfully permitted for the business without that outdoor space being counted 
towards the maximum allowable square feet in this Exhibit so long as the required social 
distancing requirements set forth herein are met, and appropriate safety measures are 
taken to ensure the safety of the public in the outdoor space.  

 
9. All publicly accessible locations not specified in section 4 of this Exhibit shall limit the 

number of individuals present in such publicly accessible location to only those who can 
safely maintain the social distancing requirements set forth herein and shall not exceed 
fifty (50) percent of the location’s authorized fire or building code occupancy. 

 
 

Page 149Item # 15.


	Top
	1. City Council Special Session Meetings
	City Council Special Session Minutes Document

	2. Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes Document

	3. records
	Record Destruction Request Form

	4. vendors
	2020 Vendor Audit Reports

	5. ub adjustments
	ub adjustments

	6. 2nd reading of shuyler creek
	staff report shuyler creek
	2020-05-05 - Ordinance - MoDOT Trails Grant STP WIlson Creek PACKET
	MoDOT Agreement for Shuyler Trail Extension ROW & Engineering STBG-6900(813)

	7. Rezone 7500 Block West Farm Road 174
	REZN 20-003 Council Staff Report
	2020-05-19 - Ordinance - Rezone - 7500 FR174 PACKET
	Vicinity Map
	FLU Map
	Zoning Map
	&#39;R1-H&#39; High Density Single-Family Residential District

	8. Vacation Cox Clinic Water Line Easement
	VACA 20-001 Council Staff Report
	2020-05-19 - Ordinance - Vacation Cox water line PACKET
	Vicinity Map
	Vacation Survey

	9. A'vila Infrastructure Agreement
	A'Vila Developers Agreement Council Staff Report
	2020-05-19 - Ordinance - Infrastructure Development Agreement Avila PACKET
	2020-04-28 - Avila delayed infrastructure development agreement

	10. Amend OTO Articles
	OTO staff report
	2020-05-19 - Resolution - Amend OTO Bylaws PACKET

	11. Preliminary Plat - Olde Savannah
	SUBD-PRE 20-002 Council Report
	2020-02-18 - Resolution - Preliminary Plat - Olde Savannah PACKET
	19122 prelim plat sub 3
	Vicinity Map

	12. Water wastewater master plan
	Master Plan Staff Report
	2020-05-19 - Resolution - water waste water master plans PACKET
	Final Master Plan Executive Sumaries

	13. Phone System Bid Acceptance
	ITEM-Staff-9de9b1f4f5134d68a80ec7a583cc721c (1)
	2020-05-19 - Resolution - Phone System Bid Acceptance PACKET
	Mitel
	bid tabulations

	14. Opening of a Municipal Court Bank Account and Establishing Authorized Signers on Account
	Municipal Bank Account
	2020-05-19 - Resolution - Court Checking Account PACKET

	15. COVID-19 Recovery Plan Phase Two
	ITEM-Staff-9de9b1f4f5134d68a80ec7a583cc721c
	2020-05-19 - Resolution - COVID19 Recovery Plan PACKET

	Bottom

